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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Principal activities

Liberty Zeta Limited (the "Company”) is the ultimate holding company of the Liberty Group of companies (the "Group").
Operating since (875, Liberny’s aim is to be recognised throughout the world as a British luxury brand with an authority in
taste-making. design. omni-channel retail and makers of fine printed cottons and silk,

Business review and future developments

The consolidated operating profit of the Giroup in the Income Statement for the 52 week period until 29 January 2022 (the
“period”) was £2.937.000 (2021 (restated): operating loss of £12.681.000) and is set out on page 19 ol the financial statements.
The financial position of the Group, showing a net asset value of £104,161.000 (2021 (restated): £106.800.000}) is set out in the
consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 21 of the financial statements. The loss before taxation for the financial
period amounted 10 £7.165.000 (2021 (restated): loss of £23.088.000).

The severity of the COVID-19 global pandemic impacted the group in 2020, however the UK lockdown was still in place at the
staet of the new financial year. and along with COVID-19 restrictions in other countries that the group trades in. the period in
review was also impacted by the global response to manage the pandemic. The group grew revenues against the impaired 30
January 2021 year. but was still trading behind the | February 2020 pre-Covid vear,

Libertv Retail

The flagship store was closed from the start of the financial year in line with the UK government directive and reopened on | 2th
April 2021. The store reopened to a market that remained heavily impaired by lower tootfall, however trading strengthened
progressively during the summer months and gave management confidence that the pace of recovery would be in line with
expectations for the important Christmas trading quarter. Despite the notable reduction in international visitors. the store was
getting close to pre-covid levels in certain periods. The store performance was impacted again in December 202} when new
government measures 1o tackle the rapidly rising cases of the Omicron variant, including a working from home directive,
negatively impacted the trajectory of recovery through to the end of the financial year.

During the period. the two year store renovation project completed. The store appearance was enhanced following major internal
and external works to the windows, rendered panels, wood features and glass atriums. Fhe building is a grade 2 star listed building
and the renovations have ensured that the standard of the building as a key London landmark is pratected. and will showcase the
heritage of the Liberty brand to aid the future growth of the business in the years to come.

Liberty's Online business had a benefit from those shoppers unable to visit Stores that had been closed by the lockdowns. both in
2020 and in 2021 as the stores reopened to reduced footfall. The challenge in 2021 was to retain those customers that we had
acquired onling in the prior year. The Liberty online revenue grew slightly in the financial period.

It was another record year for the Liberty beauty advent calendar and during the year. Liberty launched its first subscription
service called 'Beauty Drop'. Unigue to the market. this initiative builds on the strength ot Liberty's beauty business and it has
received a very strong initial response from customers willing to sign up to the programme. Subscribers receive 4 boxes of curated
beauty products a year in return for a monthly spend commitment. The long-term benefit to the business will be seen in higher
retention levels of high value customers and safes growth.

Liheriv Fabrics
The Liberty Fabrics business saw strong revenuc growth in the financial year. As global markets recovered from the COVID-19

pandermic, our customers were gaining contidence in future demand and taking more risk on their inventory of finished products,
this in turn benefirted the liberty Fabrics business in both fashion and drapery.

While Furope was slower in recovery, the business saw strong growth in other strategic regions such as the Middle East and North
America.

Liberty Fabrics continues to improve its vertical integration with Stamperia Olonia SRi.. achieving benefits from improved
production lead times and consistent quality in production. Vertical integration helps the group benefit from a higher end to end
gross margin. reduced risk and higher quality by controlling more stages of the supply chain. Stamperia Olonia SRL continues to
focus on the research and development of printing, techniques. improving operational efficiencies 1o enhance product guality and
Customer ser ice.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Business review and future developments {continued}

While the group's revenue generation is not materially exposed o government sanctions as a result the Russian invasion of
Uhkraine. ltaly, and therefore Stamperia Qlonia SRL. rety on energy imported from Russia to maintain its printing activities. Utility
costs are a significant cost of the Stamperia Olonia SRL. operating costs. The group is able to absorb this cost over the short term
and will be investing to install solar panels at the Stamperia Glonia SRL site to offset energy cost inflation and further reduce
carbon emissions.

Liborny Brand

The Group continues to focus on the Liberty London brand and product development with a series of successful launches in the

financial period. Successtul product categories include jewellery, scarves and fashion accessories. Management is encouraged by
the appeal of this product sold through its retail channels and see it as a key driver for future growth, particularly in internationat
markets.

Corporate strategy

Liberty Zeta Limited and its subsidiaries are split across three significant segments: Liberty Retail. Liberty Fabrics, (including
Stamperia Qtonia SRL) and Liberty Brand. Each of the five businesses has its own business plan and the Board of Directors {the
"Directors”) manages adhierence to these plans.

The strategy of the Group, led by the activities of the Directors, is to grow profitably in the three segments, as tollows;

= Liberty Retail is tocused on prefitable growth of the 140+ year old retail business. trading from its iconic tudor building
on Great Marlborough Street. London (the "Flagship” store} and through its website. LibertyLondon.com which extends
reach and distribution in the UK and intemationally through digital experience. unique product edit and competitive
service proposition.

e  The Liberty Fabrics strategy focuses on profitable growth through a dvnamic, customised approach to its BIB customers
in different global regions. This is driven by expansion of designs. design services. base cloths and exceptional product
quality and service. This strategy is supported by the activities of the Stamperia Olonia SRL division in the preparation
and printing of fabrics for both external customers and for Liberty Fabrics using both traditional and digital printing
methods.

s The Liberty Brand product strategy focuses on the continued development of a luxury goods brand that will be
distributed on a global scale using both Liberty Retail and B2B cusiomers.

Key performance indicators

The Directors use a number of KPI's which they consider are effective in measuring delivery of the strategy. and which assist the
Directors in management of the business. The KPI's relating 1o the business are shown below.

52 week period 52 weeh period

ended ended

29 January 2022 30 fanuary 2021

(Restated)

Total revenue £'000 149,601 117,397
EBITDA before non-recurring and one-off costs ("Management EBITDA™) £000 L1583 (2.800)
Management EBITDA as a percentage of sales %o 7.5% (2.4)%
Operating profit/iloss) £000 2,937 (12.681)

The group generated "Management EBITDA” of £11.2m {2021: (£2.8m)). while the recovery to generating "Management
EBITDA™. is positive. the group was further impaired in the year from government action keeping the store closed until April
2021. The "Management EBITDA" is still behind the £25.8m generated in the FY20 period which was the pre covid year. While
revenue growth is not as far behind the period ending 1 February 2020, the move to oniine sales has increased the cost base duc to
the higher variable cost to serve on online channels than the predominantly fixed cost base in the flagship store and as such
adversely impacted the Liberty Retail "Management EBITDA™ % to sales. The operating profit of the Group was £2.937.000
{2021 (restated): operating loss of £12.681.000).

ta



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Management EBITDA

Management EBITDA is calculated by adding back and deducting non-recuering revenue and costs respectively from statutory
EBITDA.

52 week period 52 week period

ended ended

29 January 2022 30 Janhuary 2021

(Restated)

Operating profit 2,937 (12,681)
Depreciation Note 8 5.220 4.3853
Amortisation Note 7 2218 2821
EBITDA 10,375 (3.007)
Exceptional costs 1.433 3.009
IFRS 16 depreciation Note 9 4130 4.096
IFRS 16 lease payments Note Y (5.090) (5.206)
IFRS 2 - share based payments Note 19 305 (292)
Management EBITDA 11,153 (2,800)

Non-recurring transactions outside the ordinary course of business are treated as exceptional items.

Impairment of goodwill £545.000 (2021: £nil)

Change in accounting policy in relation to Cloud Computing £nil (2021; £91.000)

One off refurbishment costs in relation to the Flagship store £888.000 (2021: £510,000)

Restructuring costs of £nil were incurred in the period as a result of a review of the business structure (2021: £1.257.000).

Dual running costs of £nil were incurred in the period as result of the short-term Grosvenor Square office building lease. This
preject is now complete and as such, going forward. no further costs will be incurred (2021: £739.000).

One off bad debt provision of £nil relating to potentially non-recoverable VAT in Ttaly (2021: £1.0£2.000).
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Directors and the senior executive team identify and evaluate risks and uncertainties in the period covered by the Group
Business Plan and design controls to mitigate these. Responsibility for management of cach key risk is identified and delegated by
the Directors to specific senior executives within each of the Group's operating businesses.

This section describes some of the specitic risks that could materially atfect the Group's businesses. The risks outlined below
should be considered in connection with any financial and forward-fooking information in the financial statements. These risks
could materially affect the Group's business. its operating profits. earnings. net assets, liquidity and capital resources.

Economic, political, social and regulatory changes adversely affecting the Group s financial performance

The Group is exposed to the risks of global and regional adverse political. economic and financial market developments
(including recession, inflation and currency fluctuations ). that could lower the Group's revenues and operating results in the
future.

The Group's results could also be adversely atfected by events that reduce domestic or international travel. such as actual or
threatened acts of terrorism or war, epidemics. travel-related accidents or industrial action. increased transportation and fuel costs
and natural disasters.

The Group continue to monitor and asses the impact on the group due to changes in economic. political. social and regulatory

decision making. The group considers whether any changes have an adverse impact and will address these with mitigating factors
as seen fit.

e



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
Financial marhet volatility adversely affecting the Group’'s financial performance

The Group is sensitive to macroeconomic volatility and the resultant reduction in supply of credit and its significant increase in
cost. In addition, liquidity risk affects the Group. in that this could result in it being unable to meetits financial obligations as they
fall due. The Directors' approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Group has sufficient liguidity to
meet its liabilities. without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage o the Group's reputation and business. The Group
uses detailed divisionat cash flow reporting 1o assist the Directors in monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising cash
returns on investments across the whole Group. The Group entered into a Senior Financing arrangement with a six vear term
commencing on 31 January 2018,

Technology and systems disruption adversely affecting the Group™s efficiency

To varying degrees. the Group is reliant upon information technologies and systems for the running of its businesses. particularly
those which are highly integrated with business processes. Any disruption 1o those technologies or sy stems could adyersely atfect
the efficiency ot the business.

An Information Security Management System {I18MS) is in place 1o address the governance, risk and compliance of information
security and information technology.

The Group is committed to having the correct systems and processes in place to support the Group’s stralegic objectives and is
investing in systems and security to support this development. These improvements in information technologies and systems are
being funded through operational cash flows.

g ghop

Loss of key management personnct

The Group is reliant on its team of executives. The future success of the Group depends on the ability of its existing management
tearn. the identification and appointment of suitable additional executives when required. and on the Group's ability to motivate
and retain staff with the requisite experience. The group implement a robust recruitment process to ensure the quality and quantity
ol hiring is sufficient and continue to engage with employees throughout their employment to ensure the group continue to retain
key personnel.

Changes in fashion trends

The Group is dependent upon its ability to interpret and offer fashion products that customers wish to purchase. Failure to be
successful in this area of activity. particularly noting the long lead times before product is available for sale. would cause an
adverse impact on revenues and profitability.

Reliance on reputation of the Liberty brands

Ifan event occurred that materially damaged the reputation of’any of'the Group's core brands or there was a failure to sustain the
appeal ot the Group’s brands to its customers, this could have an adverse impact on revenues and resultant sharehotder value.

The Group owns a worldwide portiolio of trade mark registrations. The Liberty design archive is protected by UK copyright.
Should the Group become aware of any trade mark or copyright infringement, steps are taken to enforce the Group's legal right in
relation to that infringement.

Pension scheme shortfulls

The Liberty Retail Limited Pension Scheme ("the Scheme™). which is a defined benefit pension scheme. s currently showing
asscts of £3.657.000 (2021 £2.877,000). If the value of the Scheme assets were to decling materially relative to its liabilitics. the
Scheme may show a higher deficit and the Group might be required to make additional contributions to cover this shortfall. This
would have an adverse impact on cash flow available to the Group, with resultant adverse effects on the cash flow and net worth
of the Group.

Management and Pension Scheme Trustees mect regularly and have made major changes to the investment strategy of the Scheme
over recent years to respond to changes in the market and to underpin its financial performance. They also receive advice from
external actuaries and investment advisers which assists in mitigating this risk through the Scheme’s diversified investments and
risk minimisation strategy.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
Financial risk management ohjcctives and policies

The Group uses various financial instruments and is aiso exposed to risk in respect of its holding of investments in subsidiary
undertahings. Existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group to a number of financial risks which are described in
more detail below,

The main rishs 1o the Group arising from its financial instruments are market risk. credit rish. liquidity risk and investiment
intpairment risk. Directors and management review and agree the approach to manage each of these.

Muarket risk

Market risk that affects the Group is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency rates and equity
prices, will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Group's markel
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while seeking (o optimise returns
to shareholders. The Group does not enter into hedge contracts on a speculative or trading basis.

Credit risk

Credit nisk is the rish of financial loss to the Group ifa customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meel its
contractual obligations. The risk to the Group arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and from deposits
with financial institutions.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the Group's customer base. including the general default risk in the principal sectors in which the Group eperates, has less of an
influence on credit risk. The Group maintains credit insurance which protects against bad debts that may arise. with an excess of
the higher of £2.000 or 10% payable per claim.

The group deposits money with financial institutions and monitors the health and financial condition of those institutions,
Ligquidity risk {incorporating interest rate risk)

The Group's treasury policies are designed to ensure that sutficient committed loan facilities are available to support current and
future business requirements. Cash and loan management is a core feature ot the Board's business model and rolling cash flow
forecasts. updated on a weekly basis. are controlled by the Directors and senior executives to manage these requirements,
Investment impairment risk

The directors understand the risks associated with the investments held by the entity and the fact that these risks relate to the
potential impairment of those investments. To identify any risk of impairment in a timely manner. the Group reviews the financial
performance of its investments on a regular basis. The directors arce satisfied with the performance of the investments and foresee
no change in this for the foresceable future.

Capital management policy

The group's objectives when managing capital are;

s 1o safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to
other stakeholders: and

o toensure sufficient liquid resources are available to meet the funding requirement of its working capital cycles and to
fund new projects where identified.

This is achieved through ensuring sufficient bank and other facilities are in place. alongside the continual monitoring of cashilow
forecasts and other financial key performance indicators.

n



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
Foreign exchange fluctnations

The Growp transacts a significant proportion of its sales and purchases in foreign currency. The Group mitigates the efiect of
adverse movements in exchange rates first by negotiating the functional currencies of large purchase contracts to match the
currency of sales receipts. thereby creating a natural hedge. Consolidation of the Group's Japanese tabric business and [talian
printing business in these Financial Statements includes the impact of the movement in the Sterling'Yen and Sterling Furo
exchange rates during the period and at the period end on the consolidated resulis and net asset value of the loreign operations.
For further information on the hinancial eisk management policy, please refer to note 17.

Changes in rax legislation materially changing the tax paid hy the Group

The Group is exposed to rishs from increases in tax rates and changes in the basis of taxation. including corporation tax and VAT,
The engagement of experienced executives within the Group and by its parent undertaking w handle these matters enhances the
protection to the Group in this area of its activities. The Group and its parent undertaking also maintain a regular monitoring of
legislative proposals and undertakes detailed analysis and review with external (non-audit related) advisers to evaluate and. if
possible. mitigate the impact of the changes.

Section 172 statement

The Directors, in line with their duties under s172 of the Companies Act, act in good faith in promoting the success of the
company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making fong term
decisions. Examples of such factors are as detailed below:

a) Considered the principal rishs of the company

by Reviewed long term funding requirements to support the future growth and success of the company

¢} Considered the interest of the company’s empioyees

d) Recognise the importance of strong relationships with suppliers. customers and other key stakeholders

£) Importance of the company within the community and environment and also endeavour t maintain high standards
of business conduct

f)  Operate fairly and in the interest of the company

Material 'What is Important {0 the stakeholder Methods of Engagement Consideration and Impact
Stakeholders
Sharcholders ¢ Ullimate beneficial owners of s  Regular update meetings s Financial updates on business
the Group with directors and performance allowed the
¢ Obtain insight imo strategic nominated board board to accept the recovery
growth plans o Access to senior plan post COVID of the
s Receive acctirate and reliable management for aroup
business information particular matters e Agreed hey project
s Specific investor calls for commitments for new
non-board members categorics for brand growth

e.g Beauty.

» Agreed in principle to allow
management to mitigate
cashflow risk by engaging
with debt holders to extend
loan periods and maturity.

[§]
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STRATEGIC REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Section 172 statement (continued)

Eniplovees Regular communication and Engagement sureys Established a post COVID
engagement around relevant lopics hy brid working policy
Up to date information on the Individual performance Agreed payment of One off
business reviews and development cost of living allowance to
Feeling valued by the business plans help with fears around

Engage with our monetary pressures

workforce through the Created an equality torum to

L.iberty Forums allow for differing external
speakers to talk about key
equality aspects in modern
society

Customers To ensure we continue to offer, Provide an excellem Launch of a new curated
aluxury experience customer experience face beauty subscription loy alty
To ensure that we are still at to face and virtually programme in September
the forefront of curating Ensure customer 2621
product and design that fits expectations are Completed multi million
their needs continuously met through pound renovation of the

post contact survey s flagship store to allow for an

Weekly emails enhanced shopping

hightighting new product experience.

or lifestyle idea. Introduced Key customer

Access to schemes such contact KPI['s over 3 day

as the beauty drop and resolution of customer

the Liberty Collective queries and a 83% resolution
rate,

Suppliers Regular and timely payment Designated point of The buying tcam work with
Regular communication as to contact for all suppliers suppliers to develop and buy
how their brand is performing Constant review ot the relevant products for
and any actions we may have supplicr base to ensure current customer trends
to take to mitigate poor the brand is still relevant Review of non inventory
performance for L.iberty suppliers to ensure valuc is
Importance to Liberty is that CSR team stilt being obtained.
suppliers are meeting the communicating with Communication with Key
cthical code that Liberty suppliers to ensure cthica suppliers on business
expects from all supplier, code of conduct is met recovery post COVID

interruption.

Debt holders Future success of the business Debt holders are Receive a monthly financial
ensuring covenants are met represented on the Board pack

Senior finance Receive a more detailed
individuals host quarterly quarterly update regarding
updates with debt holders historical and future
performance
Request to potentially assist
in mitigating any future
issues in covenant
compliance
An amended and extended
Senior Facility Agreement
was signed in the post
balance sheet period.
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for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Section 172 statement (continued)

Pension e  Ensure that the pensioners are Trustees meeting takes *  Agreed a method and
I'tustees fairly treated place every quarter timeline for GMP
» Regular updates on attended by the CFO who equalisation
performance and strategy of is the company appointed s Monitored and assessed the
the business. trustee funding position in line with
*»  Move towards seft-sutticiency Regular communication medium term projections
tor funding the scheme in the with the Trustees on e Reviewed the hedging and
medium term. specific issues investment strategy and
approve trades tw execute the
strategy
+ Monitor the performance of
the administrator of the
scheme
Community and e Impact of our operations Selected Modern Slavery e Highlight a chosen modern
nvironment Suppott to local cconomy as an effective cause o slavery charity on the websitel
Ethical and responsiblc support. and allow customers to mahke
business practice Regular review ot donations to that charity
suppliers to ensure that o  Continued roll out of supplier
they are meeting the reviews with focus this year
ethical code Liberty on ethically sourced cotton.
requires.

The outeome and actions explain the key involvement of the directors in the period in respect to their section 172 obligations,

On behalf of the Board

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director

30 November 2022
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 Januvary 2022

Directors

The Directors of the company who were in office during the period and up to the signing date of the financial statements. unless
otherwise stated, were:

Marco Anatrietlo

Marco Capello

Emilio Di Spiezio Sardo

Abdul Wahab Saud Albabtain

Enrico Letta (resigned 14 March 2021)
Adil Mehboob-Khan

Massimo Saracchi

Robert Unsworth

Chi Chung Cheung

Carlo Pirzio-Biroli

Financial risk management and principal risks and uncertainties

Details of future developments, financial risk management. principal risks and uncertaintics and post balance sheet events can be
found in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 11 and form part of this report by cross- reference.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company maintains Directors™ and Officers’ qualifying third party indemnity insurance, which provides appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its Directors. Qualitying indemnity insurance was tn torce throughout the period and remains in
force as at the date of signing the tinancial statements.

Results and dividend

The Greup generated a loss before taxation of £7.165.000 (2021: £23.088.000). The Dircctors do not recommend the payment of
adividend (2021: £nil).

Going Concern

The Directors contirm that having reviewed the Group and parent campany cash requirements for a period of fourteen months
from the date of signing these financial statements, they have a reasonable expectation that the Group and parent company have
adequate resources to continue in operativnal existence and to mecet their Habilities as and when they fall due. The Group have
confirmed that. if required. they will continue to support the parent company such that it can meet all of its liabilities as and when
they fall due. The Directors have accordingly adopted the going concern basis in preparing thesc financial statements.

The group has adjusted to trading in the post COVID-19 environment and aligned strategies to changing consumer behaviours,
whilst also considering other risks such as inflationary issues, Brexit and Interest rate increase. The Group decided to extend its
detailed short term plans to a 2 year view, from the balance sheet date. which considers the above and aliows the directors to make
more informed decision regarding the current obligations that the group faces. This plan formed the basis ot investments the group
was witling to make to ensure it could still meet its obligations in the 2 year horizon while sensitising for any downturns. At the
peintof signing |4 months remained 1o the end of this 2 year plan and as such was still valid in its usc for ascertaining a going
concern basis for the group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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Going Concern (continued)

As a resuft of the initial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in July 2020. the group gained access toa £15.000.000 loan under the
'K government Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan Scheme ("CLBILS™), which was to be repaid over a three-year
period. While this loan was accessed in the early stages of the pandemic, an extended period of store closure and slower recoven
meant re-engaging with lenders in April 2021 to allow for amendments to the finance agreement. which included the following:

e Access to a further £3.000.000 from the Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan Scheme ("CLBILS™) for a four
month period between July 2021 and October 2021 to aid investment in workine capital {or the Christmas sales period .

e Lenders allowing deferral of contractual debt repay ments of £5.000,000 that were due in January 2022 under the July
2020 finance agreement and agreeing to convert an element of future interest pavments into debt 10 aid the cash flow of
the group.

s The existing sharcholders increased their committed equity support to £10.000.000 and £6.000,000 was injected in April
2021 through the issue of 2.400.000 new preterence shares at a nominal value of £2,50. The residual £4,000.000 remains
contractually committed but undrawn,

s lLeverage covenants have been waived until April 2023 and the liquidity covenant has remained at £4,000.000 until the
end of January 2022 and then reduces back to £3.000.000 therealter. While the leverage covenant has been waived, this
has been replaced by a quarterly minimum EBITDA test that commences from January 2022 until January 2023. The
minimum EBITDA allowed at the end of January 2022 is £6.000,000 rising in quarterly increments to £15,000,000 as at
January 2025, The group are permitted call the committed the remaining £4.000.000 of shareholder funds in order to cure
the liquidity and EBITDA covenants.

In the post balance sheet period afier reviewing the obligations due under the April 2021 {inance agreements and the pace of
recovery currently planned the group re engaged with the lenders specifically on impending repayment of the final £10.000,000 of
the CLIBLS loan that is due in July 2023. After being advised that an extension on the payment deadline is not allowed under the
tules of the CLIBLS loan the group entered into an amended tinance agreement on 30th September 2022 which included the
following :

¢ Upon repayment of the final £10.000,000 tranche of the original £15.000.000 CLIBLS loan in Julv 2023 the group will
have access to a new 6 month RCF facility with a value of £5,000.000 for a period of 6 months.

¢ Lenders have agreed for elements of future interest payment to be converted into debt

e Thegroup also agreed an extension of existing facilities. The RCE facility now expires in October 2024 compared to July
2023 and the Senior Debt now expires in January 2025 compared 1o January 2024

While the UK government’s stance on the management of COVID-19 has sottened since April 2022, the group remains aware that
orders like work from home or even circuit breaker lockdowns are still a possibility especially as seen over the Winger in 2021.
The group has maodelled the impact of these orders and still remains inside covenants set by the finance agreement.

The more important risk factors that may affect the short termy plans for the group arise around pace of recovery and changing
consumer behaviour especially in the fight of Inflation level and the rising interest rates that the Bank of England are using to
control inflation.

Numerous downside scenarios that were severe but plausible in nature were run over the period ending January 2024 these
scenarios included softer revenues generated than planned. double digit inflationary pressures on the cost base and increases to the
UK interest rate.

The groups covenant requirements were tested against these downside scenarios and while there was enough headroom on the
covenant reguirement if a combination of these downs side scenarios were to happen the group may have to consider calling on
the contracted £4.000.000 remaining shareholder commitment to ensure the headroom.

The Directors remain confident that actions within their control. such as the ability tw reduce cost. capital expenditure and manage
working capital. that the Group and parent company would be able to comply with its liquidity and minimum EBITDA covenants.

As a result of the actions above and the revised financing agreement signed in September, the Directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the period to
27 January 2024 from the date ol signing these financial statements and therefore adopt the going concern assumption in the
preparation of these financial statements.

10
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for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Post balance sheet events

in the post halance sheet period after reviewing the obligations due under the April 202t finance agreements and the pace of
recovery currently planned the group re engaged with the lenders specificatly on impending repay ment of the final £10.000.000 of
the CLIBLS loan that is due in July 2023 After being advised that an extension on the payment deadline is not allowed under the
rutes of the CLIBLS loan the group entered into an anmended finance agreement on 30th September 2022 which included the
lotlowing :

e Upon repayment of the final £10.000.000 tranche of the original £15,000.000 CLIBLS loan in July 2023 the group
will have access to a new 6 month RCF facility with a value of £5,000.000 for a period of 6 months.

¢  Lenders have agreed for elements of future interest payment to be converted into debt.

+  The group also agreed an extension of existing facilities. The RCF facility now expires in October 2024 compared o
July 2023 and the Senior Debt now expires in Janvary 2025 compared 1o January 2024,

Employment (including disabled employvees})
Emplovee engugement and development

We pride ourselves at Liberly with a culture of openness and transparency with colleagues and over the last two years have been
building up a programme of communication from the Leadership Team through monthly videos presented by the CEQ. As part of
these interactions. employees are made aware of the current state of the business and the future plans of the Group.

It is Group policy to keep employees informed of the sirategy. activities and financial performance of the Group and to encourage
them to take a wider inferest in its affairs, This is achieved in a vaciety of ways. including electronic media, operational reporting.
personal and Group briefing sessions, as well as consultation with employees or their representatives on a regular basis so that
their views can be taken into account in making decisions likely to affect their interests. Communication is supplemented by a
publication tool including “Yammer™, an enterprise social network and the quarterly "Liberty Forum" led by the senior
management team.

We manage the majority of our recruitment via an in house Talent Team who are heavily focussed on attracting a range of
candidates to ensure that we have a diverse and inclusive employee pool. We remain committed to the personal development ot
our employees and continue to review innovative ways 1o ensure that employees have personal development plans in place.

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and is committed 1o developing a working culture which enables alt employ ees w
make their own distinctive contribution. Employment policies are designed to be fair. equitable and consistent with the abilities ol
the employees and the needs of the Group. Applications for employment by disabled persons are fully considered. bearing in mind
the aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of any member of staft becoming disabled, effort would be made 10 enable
their employment with the Group. It is the policy of the Group that the training. development and promotion of disabled persons
should. as far as possible. be the sanme as to that of other employees. The health and safety of employees is important to the Group
and reviewed periodically in light of good practice and developing legislation.

Environmental responsibility and health and safety

The Group considers that corporate soctal responsibitity and eflective corporate governance are important components of its
businesses. The Group is committed to fair treatment of all stakeholders in the business. and o responsible employment policies.

The Group's risk review assists the Directors in identifying and assessing risks that could affect the businesses of the Group. This
in turn enables them 1o implement appropriate social. ethical and environmental policies in conjunction with the financial policies
of the Group. The Group does not operate in areas ot high environmental risk. One of its principal environmental impacts arises
from energy consumption, with electricity now procured from rencwable sources. The Group also seeks to reduce the impact of
paper usage by recyeling and by the increasing use of onling transmissions and electronic data collection.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRF.CTORS' REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Environmental responsibility and health and safety (continued)

The Directors operate the business in pursuit of good environmental standards. including the fellowing:

»  Respecting the environment in which the Group operates. whikst maintaining commercial viability and long term

profitabibity:

e Setting objectives and targets and monitoring performance to ensure adherence 1o Group policies:

»  Raising the environmental awareness of employ ees and customers:

®  Working in partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure effective management of environmental and social
impacts and o minimise any adverse impact of operations on the environment: and

e« Complying with relevant legislation and related requirements.

The Directors adopt high levels of health and safety at work. Health and salety considerations are addressed as follows:

e Providing a good working environment for employees and treating emplovees with fairmess, dignity and respect:

+  Promoting a high standard of health and safety for staff and contractors;

¢ Operating an equal opportunities policy for all job applicants; and

e Complying with relevant legislation and related requirements.

The ultimate responsibility for health and safety issues within the Group rests with Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Environmental impuct — energy comumption and greenhouse gas emissiony

The table below sets out a summary of Liberty’s UK energy usage. associated emissions, energy efficient actions and energy

performance.

Ltility and Scope

202122 consumption

202122 consumplion]

2020,21 consumplion|

2020/21 consumpliory

(KWh (tCO2e (KWh {(KWh
Gaseous and other fuels 109.903 2013 164,324 30.24
scope 1)
Girid supplied eleciricity 2.806.252 589.76 2.478.653 37787
scope 2)
Transport fuels energy 2,744 0.66 1.675 0.40
consumption
TOTAL 2.918.904 610.54 2,644,657 608.4¢

Emissions intensity

Intensity Metric

2021722 (CO2e 1000m2

202021 tCO2Ze: 1000m2

[ntensity metric - total tloor area

10.24)

38.20




LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Environmental responsibility and health and safety (continued)

The above data retlects consumption of sites where the company has the ability 10 influence enerey management. Pata is not
reported where the company has limited or no ability 10 influence energy management (for example tor concessions with the
store). Scope | and 2 consumption. CO2e emission data and the Emission Factor Database used are considered with the 2021 UK
government environmental reporting guidance. using the current published KW gross calorific value (CV) and KgC02e relevant
for the year under review .

We are committed to year on year improvements in our operational energy efficiency. Examples of efficiency measures
undertaken during the period include the refurbishment of the head oftice and the adoption of sensor lighting.

Section 172 statement

Allinformation in respect of our reporting requirements under $172 of the Companies Act is included in the Sirategic Report.
Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors' Report confirmn that, so far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is
aware of that information,

Re-appointment of auditor

Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as auditor of the Company for the period ended 29 January 2022 and have expressed their
willingness to continue in office.

On behalf of the Board

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director

30 November 2022



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Statement on Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each tinancial year, Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare (he group and parent company financial statements in accordance UK Adopted International Accounting
Standards in conformity with the Companies Act 2006, Under company law the directors must not approve the group financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of
the profd or uss of the group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements the directors are required Lo:

e seclect suitable accounting policies in accordance with TAS 8 Accounting Policies. changes in accounting estiamtes and
errors and then apply them consistently:

+  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

s present information, including accounting policies. in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information:

¢ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in UK Adopted International Accounting
Standards is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions. other events and conditions
on the group’s financial position and financial performance:

* in respect of the group financial statements. state whether UK Adopted International Accounting Standards has been
followed. subject to any material deparures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

* in respect of the parent company financial statements. state whether UK Adopted International Accounting standards
have been followed. subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements: and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the company and 7 or
the group will not continue in business.

The directors are respensible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any timie the financial position of the company and the group and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and with respect to the group financial
statements. Article 4 of the [AS Regulation. They are also responsible tor saleguarding the assets of the group and parent
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations. the directors are also responsible for preparing a strategic report and directors” report that
comply with that law and those regulations.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Liberty Zeta Limited « the parent company’} and its
subsidiaries ithe ‘group’ for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022, which comprise the
consolidated income statement, consalidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated and
parent company statements of financial position consolidated and parent company statements of
changes in equly, consohdated and parent company cash flow stalements. the related notes 110 23 o
the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and the
related notes 1 to 10 to the parent company financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting pohcies

I he financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable faw and UK
Adopted international Accounting Standards and as regards the parent company financial statements,
as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

in our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’'s and of the parent company's
affairs as at 29 January 2022 and of the group’s loss for the period then ended:

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Adopted
International Accounting Standards;

» the parent cempany financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK
Adopted Internaticnal Accounting Standards as appled in accordance with section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requiremenis of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

YWe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audting (UK; (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable faw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK inciuding the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled cuy other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements. we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast signtficant doubt on the group and
parent company's abilty to continue as a going concern for a period of 14 months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report. However because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a2 guarantee as to the group's ability o continue as a going
concern,
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QOther information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual repon, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contatned within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. except to the extent
otherwise explcitly stated in this report. we dao not express any farm of assurance conclusion therson.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other
information 1s materially inconsistent with the financiai statements or our knowledge obfained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements. we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a materntal misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If. based on the work we have
performed. we conciude that there is a matenat misstatement of the other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nathing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial penod for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. and

» the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with appticable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strateqgic report or directors’ report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act

2006 requires us to report ta you if. in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adeguate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns. or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by faw are not made; or

+ we have not received afl the information and expfanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 14. the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and far view. and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from matarial misstaterment. whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements. the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the
parent company's ability fo continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicabie. matters refated to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
hiquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations. of have no realistic atternative but 1o
do so.



Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote
are free from material misstatement, whether dug to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a materral misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasconably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irreqularities,
including fraud

Irregutarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. YWe design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above. to detect irreguiarities, including fraud. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery or
intertional misrepresentations. or through coliusion

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities. including fraud is explained
below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
those charged with governance of the entity and management.

« We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Group and Parent Company and determined that the most significant are those that relate to the
reporting framework (UK Adopted international Accounting Standards and the Companies Act
2006), the relevant direct and indirect tax compliance regulation in the United Kingdom,
employment laws in the relevant jurisdictions and reporting obligations in the UK including the
Modern Slavery Act. in addition. the group has to compty with 1aws and reguiations relating to its
operations. including health and safety. data protection and anti-bribery and corruption.

= We understood how the Group and Parent Company comply with those frameworks by making
enguines of management and those charged with governance to understand how the group
maintains its policies and procedures in these areas and corrobarated this by reviewing
supporting documentation such as the Code of Conduct.

+ We obtained the Fraud and Corruption Perceptions Index rating for all in-scope international
compenents noting that no components were in higher risk locations. The audit engagement
partner reviewed the deliverables of afl in scope component teams and was involved in
discussions with the component team engagement partners.

+ We communicated our identified fraud risk to all companent teams and evaluated the sufficiency
of their procedures

+ ‘Ne gssessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement. including
how fraud might cceur by considering the risk of management override and by assuming revenue
to be a fraud risk

« ‘Meincorporated data analytics into our testing of revenue and manual journals. We performed
audit procedures 1o address the fraud risk. including testing manual journals which were designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. \We tested specific fransactions back to source
documentation or independent confirmations as appropriate.

« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncempliance with
such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reviewing minutes from the Board of
Directors enquiries of management, engaging our forensics specialists and journal entry testing,
with a focus on manual journals and journals indicating significant unusual transactions identified
by specific risk criteria basad on cur understanding of the business.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Councit's websiie at hitps:iiwww fre org uk/auditorsresponsibiitiss  This
description forms part of our auditor's report

Use of our report

Thig report is made solely to the company's members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a tody. for cur audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

oo u.? !l’

L B . L

Zishan Nurmohamed (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
London

v .
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

52 week period

32 week period

ended ended
29 January 2022 30 fanuary 2021
{Restated)
Note £°000 £7000
Revenue 2 149,601 117,397
Cost of sales (66,088) (60,372}
Gross profit 83,513 57.025
Selling and distribution costs (68,941) (55.619)
Administrative expenses (10,202) (10.478)
Exceptional costs 3 (1.433) (3.609)
Operating profit/(loss) 3 2,937 (12,681)
Finance income 5 964 237
Finance expenses 5 {11,066) (10.641)
Loss before tax (7,163) (23.088)
Taxation 6 (1,147) 2.774
L.oss for the financial period (3.312) {20314
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (8312) (20,314
Loss for the financial period (8,312) (2031

All results relate to continuing operations. The notes on pages 24 to 61 form part of these financial statements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Note 52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
{Restated)
£000 £000
Loss for the period (8.312) (20314
Other comprehensive (expense)income:
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Foreign exchange translation differences for foreign operations (1.497) 313
Fair value movement on casle flow Liedge - 104
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benetit pension plan due 10 assumption changes 10 2,475 (576)
Return on scheme assets below/(in excess of) that recognised in net interest (1,3006) 1.021
Deferred tax charge on defined benelit pension scheme (21 (37)
‘Fotal other comprehensive (expenselyincome for the period (8.851) (19.309)
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (8.851) (19.309)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the period (8,851) £19.309)

The noles on pages 24 10 61 form part of these tinancial statements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 29 January 2022

29 January 2022 30 January 2021 | February 2020

{Restated)y {Restated)
Note £000 £7000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 7 158.102 159.099 157.684
Property. plant and equipment 8 27915 26.553 24118
Right of use assets 9 54,738 38,345 61.856
Deterred tax asset 14 21,583 14,182 8.072
Emplovee detined benelit asset 10 3,657 2.877 2.343
265,995 261.058 254073
Current assets
Inveniories It 35,252 28.382 35,711
Trade and other recetvables 12 14,621 19777 18473
Tax recoverable 13 - 310 144
Cash and cash equivalents 22,240 12,578 12.229
72.113 61.047 66.557
Total assets 338,108 322105 320,630
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 20 956 932 932
Share premium 20 106,603 100.629 100.629
Capital redemption reserve 104 104 104
Share based payment reserve 545 333 -
Translation reserve {722) 773 262
Cash flow hedge reserve - - (104)
Retained earnings (3,327) 4.027 23.953
Total Equity 104,161 106800 125.776
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 16 92,301 90.860 70.033
Lease liabilities 9 58,182 60,168 61.935
Provisions 18 188 194 338
Share based payment liability 19 279 186 311
Employee benetit liabilities 10 657 680 748
Deferred tax liability 14 29,543 22.647 20.534
181,150 174.734 154.436
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 41.423 33,931 37.285
Loans and borrowings 16 8.723 2.263 1.219
Tax payable 3 364 310 159
Lease liabilities 9 2,287 2.0066 1.755
52.797 40,5370 40.418
Total liabilities 233,947 215.304 194,834
Total equity and liabilities 338,108 322,105 320.630

The financial statements on pages 19 to 23 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 November 2022 and signed on its
behalf by:

AU

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMFENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

Share Based

Share Share Translation Retained
capital premium Payment reseryve carnings  Total Equity
Resemve -
£1000 £'000 £°000 £7000 £7000 £7000

Balance at 1 Februar
2020 {previously reported)  LO1,561 - - 262 22,366 124,189
Impact ol prior year
adjustments - - - - 1.587 1.387
Reclassitication (L6240 629 - - - -
Balance at | February
2020 (Restated) 932 100,629 - 262 23953 125,776
Lass for the linancial period
{rostated) - - - - 200314y (20314
(Mher comprehensive
income - - - 13 388 1.003
lotal comprehensinve
Capense - - - S13 (19.926) {1V 30
Share based payment - - 333 - . 333
Balance at 30 Januvary

2021 {restated) 932 100,629 333 778 4.027 106,800
Laoss Tor the Tinancial period - - - - (8.312) (8.312)
Other gomprehensive
income - - (1.497) 958 {339)
Total comprehensive
expense - - - 11.497) (7.334)) (8.851)
Share based payment - - 212 - - 212
lssue of preterenge shares pet 3.976 - - - 6,000
Balance at 2% January
2022 956 £06,605 345 (722) (3,327} 104,161

The notes on pages 24 10 61 form part of these financial statements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

52 week period ended 52 week periad
ended
Notes 29 January 2022 30 January 2021
{Restated)
£000 £°000
Loss for the financial period (8.312) (205314H
Taxation 6 L.147 (2.774)
Loss betore taxation (7.163) (23.088)
Adjustments to reconcile loss for the period to net cash flows
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 2,218 2.821
Finance expenses 5 11,666 10.644
Exceptional cost - goodwill impairment 7 545 -
Other exceptional costs 7 888 3.609
Share based pavment charge 19 Jos (290
Finance income 5 (964) {237)
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 8 5.220 4.853
Depreciation of right of use asset 9 4,130 4.096
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in inventories (6,870} 7.329
Change in trade and other receivables 5,156 (1,304
Change in trade and other pavables 5,493 (1.355)
Tax paid (653) (1314
Payment of exceptional costs (888) (2.397)
Defined benehit pension contributions (18) (514
Net cash generated from operating activities 18,463 2.651
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 5 2 1
Purchase of property. plantand equipment 8 (7,978) {6.706)
Purchase of intangible assets 7 (733 {(+.358)
Net cash used investing activities (8,709) (11.063)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (4.346) {(14,851)
Proceeds from the issue of preference share capital 20 6,000 -
Proceeds from the drawdown of borrowings 7,188 23.091
Repayment of borrowings (869) (1.105)
Dbt finance costs {136) (166)
Draw down on new finance lease liabilitics - 123
Payment of lease liabilities 9 (5,090) {3.2006)
Payvment of finance Icase liabilities (617) (624)
Net cash flows from financing activities 2,130 11.262
Opening cash and cash equivalents 12,578 12.229
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11.884 2.850
L ffect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (2,222) (2.501)
Closing cash and cash equivalents 22.240 12.578

I'he notes on pages 24 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated tinancial statements and parent company tinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK
adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Liberty Zeta
Limited is the largest and smallest undertaking tor which consolidaied Group financial statements are prepared.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered material to the
financial statements,

Basis of preparation

The Group fimancial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries. The parent company financial statements
present information about the Company as a separate entity and do not include information pertaining to the rest of the Group.
Liberty Zeta Limited is the only level at which the Group consolidates its results.

These consolidated financial siatements are presented in UK Sterling, which is the Company's functional currency. All financial
information has been rounded to the nearest thousand pounds or as indicated throughout.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
under the historical cost convention madified by revaluation of financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit and
loss. The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistentls.

fa) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The Company is taking advantage of the
exemption in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual statement of comprehensive income and related notes
that form a part of these approved financial statements., The Company's loss for the year was £119.000 (2021 (restated): loss of
£12,000).

Correction of prier vear errors

The following prior year adjustments were identified and corrected in the prior year comparative financial information {an
adjustment reference is in brackets fotllowing the narrativey

52 week period ended
30 January 2021

£7000
IFRS 2 - share based payment previously not recognised (1) (292)
IFRS 16 - change in discount rate and impact of previously unrecognised leases (2) 327
Incorrect capitalisation of restoration costs (3) 10
Change in accounting policy in relation to IT service contracts (4) 53
Cumulative tax impact of the above (5) 1.020
Increase in loss/{profit) for the rear arising from prior year adjustments 1.618
Loss{profit} for the financial period (previously reported) 18.696
Loss:(profit} for the financial period (restated) 20,514

The following income statement reclassification misstatements were also identified and corrected:

*  Exceptional costs of £3.609k that were not previously. separately classified and were included in administrative expenses
(6}

®  Other operating income of £1.454k that should have formed part of revenue (7)



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

L.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Correction of prior vear errors (continued)

The impact to the statement of comprehensive incomie on a line item basis is summarised below:

Previously reported

Revenue 115943
Administrative expenses 13.487
Exceptional costs -
Other operating income 1.454
Finance expenses 10.256
Tax credit 3,794

Impact of prior year Restated
adjustments

| 454 117,397

(3.230 10.257

3.609 3.609

{1.454) -

388 10.644

1,020 2774

The following statement of financial position reclassification misstatements were also identified and corrected:

Adjustment

7
1.3.4.6

LR BN |

* Inappropriate set-off of deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from different jurisdictions (21: £10,318k —20: £6,074k)

(8)

®  |nappropriate sct-off of pension liabilities and assets arising from different jurisdictions (21: £681k — 20: £748k) (9

® Inappropriate set-oft of current tax assets and liabilities arising from different jurisdictions (21: £310k — 20: £144K) (10}

e Reclassification of prepaid rent to vight of use asset (21: £341k —20: £421K) (i 1)

®  Reclassifteation of various reserves from share capital and other reserves into share premium, capital redemption reserve

and translation reserve (12)

®  lmpact of inappropriate recognition of £150k of sales and £35k of cost of sales in FY20 (13)

The impact on the consolidated statement of financial position is set-out below:

52 week period ended 30 January
2021

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Deterred tax asset

Employce defined benefit asset
Trade and other receivabies
‘fax recoverable

Share capital

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Share based payment reserve
Translation reserve

Retained earnings

Other reserves

Lease liabilities - Non-current
Share based payment liability
Employee defined benefit ability
Deferred tax liability

Trade and other payabhles

Tax payable

Lease liabilittes - current

As previously

reported

159274
27.189
53.249

196

197

10E.5061

2
20.

(4.113)
(879
(55.058)

{10.519)
(35814

(1.801)

Impact of  Reclassitications

corrections in the balance sheet
(175) -
(634) -
4.676 441
14182

- 681

- 441

- 310

- (100.629)

- 100,629

- 104
(333) -
- (775)

it -

- 879
(5.110}) -
(186) -
- (680)
2.054 (14,182}
(116) -
- (3t0)
(265) -

25
rn

Restated

155,099
26.355
58.345
14,182

2.377
19777
310
932
100,629
104
{333)
(7753)
(4.027})

(60.168)
(186}
{680)

(22.647)

(35.930)
(310)

{2.060)

Adjustment
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 weck period ended 29 January 2022

.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Correction of prior year errors (continued)

52 week period ended 1 February
2020

Tangible fixed assets

Righr of use assets

Deferred tax asset

Employee defined benelit asset
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Share capital

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Translation reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve
Retained earnings

Other reserves

Lease liabilities - Non-current
Other financial liabilities
Share based payment liability
Employee defined benefit liability
Deferred tax Hability

Trade and other payables

Tax payable

|.ease liabilities - current

Going concern

As previously

reported

24,363
50.379

th
Ao

1.59
18.69

=

A}

101.561
(22,366}
262
(56,725}
(104)

(15.593)
(36.864)
(15}
{1.755)

Impact of
corrections

(245)
4856
[.998

(1.587)

(5.230)
(811)

1.133
(Hs)

Reclassitications

421
6074
748
(218)
144
(100.629)
100.629
104
262
(104)
(262)
104
(748)
(6.074)
(307)
(144)

Restated

24.118
61.856
8.072
2,343
18.473
144
932
100.629
104
262
(104)
(23,953}

(61.955)

(811)
(748)
(20.533)
(37.286)
(139)
(1.755}

Adjustments

The Directors confirm that having reviewed the Group and parent company cash requirements for a period of fourteen months

from the date of signing these financial statements. they have a reasonable expectation that the Group and parent company have

adequate resources to continue in operational existence and to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due. The Group have
confirmed that. if required. they will continue 1o support the parent company such that it can meet all of its liabilitics as and when

they fall due, The Directors have accordingly adopted the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements,

A

The group has adjusted to trading in the post COVID-19 environment and aligned strategies to changing consumer behaviours,
whilst also considering other risks such as inflationary issues, Brexit and Interest rate increase. The Group decided to extend its
detailed short term plans to a 2 year view. from the balance shect date, which considers the above and allows the directors to make
more informed decision regarding the current obligations that the group faces. This plan formed the basits of investments the group
was willing to make to ensure it could still meet its obligations in the 2 year horizon while sensitising for any downturns. At the

point of signing 14+ months remained to the end of this 2 year plan and as such was still valid in its use for ascertaining a going

coneern basis for the group.

As a result of the initial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in July 2020 the group gained access to a £15.000,000 loan under the
UK government Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan Scheme ("CLBILS™). which was to be repaid over a three-year
peviod. While this loan was accessed in the early stages of the pandemic. an extended period of store closure and slower recovery

meant re-engaging with lenders in April 2021 to allow for amendments to the finance agreement. which included the following:

e Accessto a turther £3.000.000 from the Coronavirus Large Business [nterruption Loan Scheme ("CLBILS™)Y for a four
month period between July 2021 and October 2021 to aid investment in working capital for the Christmas sales period .
s Lenders allowing deferral of contractual debt repay ments of £3,000.000 that were due in January 2022 under the July
2020 finance agreement and agreeing to convert an element of future interest payments into debt to aid the cash flow of

the group.

» The existing shareholders increased their commitied equity support to £10.000.000 and £6.000,000 was injected in April
2021 through the issue of 2,400,000 new preference shares at a nominal value of £2.50. The residual £3,000.000 remains
contractually committed but undrawn.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Going concern (continued)

While the UIK government’s stance on the management ot COVID-19 has sottened since April 2022. the group remains aware that
orders like work from home or even circuit breaker lockdowns are still a possibility especially as seen over the Winter in 2021.
The group has modelled the impact of these orders and stilt remains inside covenants set by the finance agreement.

The more important risk factors that may aftect the short term plans for the group arise around pace of recovery and changing
consumer behaviour especially in the light of [nflation level and the rising interest rates that the Bank of England are using 1o
control inflation.

Numerous downside scenarios that were severe but plausible in nature were run over the period ending January 2024, these
scenarios included sofier revenues generated than planned, double digit inflationary pressures on the cost base and increases o the
UK interest rate.

The groups covenant requirements were tested against these downside scenarios and while there was enough headroom on the
covenant requirement if a combination of these downs stde scenarios were 1o happen the group may have to consider calling on
the contracted £4,000.000 remaining shareholder commitment to ensure the headroom.

The Directors remain confident that actions within their control. such as the ability to reduce cost. capital expenditure and manage
working capital. that the Group and parent company would be able to comply with its liquidity and minimum EBITDA covenants,

As a result of the actions above and the revised financing agreement signed in September. the Directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and mecet its liabilitics as they fall due tor the period to
27 January 2024 from the date of signing thesc financial statements and therefore adopt the going concern assumption in the
preparation of these financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
Property, Plant and Eguipment: Procecds before Tntended Use - Amendments to 115 16 Leases

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property. plant and equipment. any proceeds of the
sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items. and the costs of producing
those items, in profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of PP&E made
available for use on or after the beginning of the carliest period presented when the entity first applics the amendment (the date of
initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the censolidated financial statements ot the Group as there were no sales of such items
produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THF. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
HERS 9 Finuncial tastriments - Fees inthe "1 per cet’ test for derecogmition of financial liabilitics

The amendment clarifics the tees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantiatly different from the terms of the original financial labilitv. These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. There is no
similar amendment proposed for [AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

In accordance with the transitional provisions. the Group applies the amendment o financial liabilities that are moditied or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment (the date of
initial application). These amendments had o impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no
modifications of the Group's financial instruments during the period.

U'se of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any {uture periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation. uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the {inancial statements are described in the following notes:

Judgements:

¢ Carrying value of goodwill - an arca of judgement is the number of CGUs. The CGUis have not been changed from the
previous financial vear: being the Retail Business. Wholesale business and Christy’s: with cach of these units continuing
to operate using separate key platforms,

s Exceptional items — are those items that the Group considers to be material in nature and out of the normal course of
business that should be brought to the reader’s attention in understanding the Group’s financial performance. See Note 3.

Fstimuates:

¢ Defined Benefit Obligations - Within the defined benefit obligation. there are estimaltes used in relation to inflation rates,
life expectancy and asset volatility. A change in these assumptions and estimates would result in a change to the
obligation. Actuarial experts have been used to determine the estimates and these are reviewed at the balance shecet date.
Sec note 10:

e Impairment - the assumptions used o assess value in use for impairment testing of the Group's intangible assets and
goodwill i.e. growth rate. discount rate and sales and margin assumptions, See note 7;

e Tnventory - the assumptions used to assess the net realisable value of inventory i.e. assessment by season and
obsolescence. Estimates are based on historical trends and post year end trading performance. See note |

¢ Leases - the assumptions in applying discount rates and in assessing options to extend and break clauses to cashflows in
order to calculate the right of use asset and lease liabihity. The discount rate is based on the incremental borrowing rate.
A change in discount rate or options would result in a change in the asset and liability recorded within the financial
statements. See note 9,

Sales returns — the company sells retail products with the right of return and experience is used to estimate and provide
the value of such returns, Management reviewed the methodology and key assumptions used in deterinining the sales
return provision. such as our returns policy, actual sales. actual returns % for both store and web. and the past utilisation
of'the provision. as well as the sensitivity of these assumptions when reviewing the appropriateness of the provision.
Management are satisfied that the assumptions used and the period end provision were reasonable.

28



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 Januvary 2022

I. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates and judgements {(continued)

» Taxation - Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit witl
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgzement is required to determine the
amount ot deferred 1ax assets that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the leve! of future taxable profits.
together with future tax planning strategies. The Group has £7.960.000 (2021 (restated): £12.340.000) which comprises
of the origination and reversal of timing difterences, adjustments in respect of prior periods and the eflect of tax rate
changes. On this basis. the Group has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried
forward. If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets. profit and equity would have increased
by £3,073.000. Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 6.

*  Share based payment - Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model. which depends on the terms and conditions of the gramt. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option or
appreciation right. volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The Group initially measures the
cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a Monte-Carlo simulation 10 determine the fair value of the
liability mcurred. For cash-settied share-based payment transactions. the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of
each reporting period up to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period, For the measurement of the fair value of
equity-settled transactions with employees o the grant date. the Group uses a Monte-Carto simulation. The assumptions
and models used for estimating fair value lor share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 19.

¢ Development costs - The Group capitalises costs for product development projects. Initial capitalisation of costs is based
on management's judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product
development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model. In
determining the amounts to be capitalised. management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the project. discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. This amount includes
significant investment in the development of [T systems and Design Archive, disclosed in Note 7.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Dilution gains and losses on increases in minority interests, where no change of
control results, are recognised directly in equity. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed on acquisition
to align thermn with the policies adopted by the Group. Intra-Group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and
expenses arising from intra-Group transactions. are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financtal statements.

Where necessary. adjustments are made to the information included in the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by the Group. in order to reflect that information on a consistent basis with the rest of
the Group. Subsidiarics are entitics controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed. or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to aftect these returns through its power over the
investee.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics at the
reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on transactions are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value is determined.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency (continued)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations. including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation. are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translaled
at an average rate for the period where this rate approximates the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign operations and non-monetary assets lizhilities are taken directly to the
translation reserve.

Financial assets
Initial recognition ard measurement

Financial assets are classitied. at initial recognition. as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCT), and tair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus. in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
comtain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price as disclosed in section (¢) Revenue from contracts with customers,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCL. it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount cutstanding. This assessment is referred to

as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

Financial assets with cash tlows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash tlows will result from collecting contractual cash flows. selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost arc held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
OCT are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling,
Purchases or sales of financial asscts that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date. i.e.. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
Stthscguent measurement
For purpuses of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

¢  Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recveling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

#  Financial assets designated w fair value through OCIE with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {equity instraments)

*  Financial assets at fair vajue through profit or loss



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 32 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued}

Financial assets at ainortised cost (debt instrmenis)

Financial assets al amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. moditied or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables. and loan to an associate and loan to a director included
under other non-current financial assets,

Fincncial asseis ar fedv value throwgh OCT (debt instriments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income. foretgn exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCL Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
QOC1 is recycled to profit or loss.

The Group's debi instruments at fair value through OCT includes investments in quoted debt instruments included under other
nen-current financial assets.

Financial assets designated af faiv value through OCH fequity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect 1o classify irrevocably its equity investments as equitly instruments designated at fair
value through OCT when they meet the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends are recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset. in which case. such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated
at fair vatuc through OCI are not subject to impairment assessiment.

The Group elected 1o classity irrevocably its non-listed equity investiments under this category.
Derecognition

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e.. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

*  Therights to receive casl flows from the asset have expired, or:

e  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Group has ncither transferred nor retained
substantialy all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the assct

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement. it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transterred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor transterred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transterred asset and the associated lability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

3



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
fmpairnicnt
Further disclosures refating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

Disclosures for significant assumptions

e Debtinstruments at fair value through OCI

¢ Trade receivables
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments rot held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash {lows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flons will inctude cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
ferms.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and meastwement
Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. loans and
borrowings, pavables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group's financial labilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments,
Subsequent nledsurenent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilitics are classified as below:

e Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
Finuncial liabilities ol amortised cost (loans and borrovwings)
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recogpition. interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiwm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally
applies to interest-bearing toans and borrow ings.
Derecngnition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Whean an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified. such an exchange or moditication is treated as the derecognition of the originat liability and the

recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

"t
[ 3%



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

Financial liabilities (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial tiahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position il there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise: trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents. loans and borrowings and
trade and other pavables.

Trade receivables are initizlly recognised at fair value and measured for expected credit losses. A provision for impairment of
trade receivables is also established when there is evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amourtuts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. The movement in the provision is recognised in the income stalement Trade payables.
defined as financial liabilities in accordance with IFRS 9. are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Al of the trade payables are non-interest bearing.

Subsidiary companies

The subsidiary undertakings of the Company are all engaged in retail activities, fabric printing. wholesale distribution or licensing
activities, or act as intermediary holding. financing or management companies for such operations. Details of the Company’s
subsidiary undertakings are set out in note 2 of the Parent Company's financial statements.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s

interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitics of the acquiree. When the excess is
negative (negative goodwill), it is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a minority interest in a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of the additional
investment over the carryving amount of the net assets acquired at the date of exchange.

Goodwill is measured ar cost less impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees. the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Intangible Assets

The Group classifies intangible assets into the following categories: Brands, Design Archive, Customer Relationships and
Concession Agreements.

Brands

In accordance with [FRS 3, brands acquired by the Group are initially included in the financial statements at their fair value. An
annual impairment assessment of the usefut life of the brands is performed at the end of each financial period. Where this revcals
a surplus, the value of the brand is retained, where it reveals a deficit. the brand is written down und the deficit is charged 1 the
income statement, Subsequent expenditure on the brand is recognised in the income statement when incurred.

The Directors consider that the Group's brand has an indefinite useful life due to the durability of its underlying businesses which
has been demonstrated for over 100 years.

Intangible Assets

Design Archive - acquired

The intangible design archive acquired by Liberty Zeta upon acquisition consists of intellectual property which has been used to
inspire new designs and leverage the Liberty brand. The acquired Design Archive has been considered to have an indefinite useful

life as the Group continues to use and leverage the fabric designs to generate sales and profits. This is tested for impairment
annually in line with [FRS.

[ 3]
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cuntinued)

Intangible Assets (continued)
Dexign Archive - imeraallyv gencrated

The Company adds to its digital design archive each period with new seasonal. capsule and bespoke collections created by the in
house design team or purchased from independent artists. The costs associated with these new designs. being salaries and other
directly attributable development costs are capitalised in line with the internally generated intangible asset policy detailed below:

Research costs are expensed as incurred,

Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
e it will generate tuture economic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the asset and;

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Foltowing the initial recognition of the development expenditure, intangible assets are stated at cost. The intemally generated
Desiun Archive has been considered to have an indefinite useful life as the Group centinues to use and feverage the (abric designs
o generate sales and profits. This is tested for impairment annually in line with IFRS.

Assets under construction are not amortised.
Customer Relationships

The Group has identifiable customer relationships within the Fabrics division. These relationships have an identitiable income
stream generated from the customer and a continued expectation that the relationship will be renewed. These customer
relationships are ongoing and are considered to have a useful life of 11 years.

Concession  [grecmeits

The Group has a number of contractual agreements in place with concession providers in the Retail Flagship store. These
contractual relationships typically last for one year but many have been in place for a number of years after renewals. The
concession agreements are considered to have a useful life of'8 years,

Computer Software
Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost of computer software using the straight line method over the estimated useful
life of five years.

Assets under construction are not amortised until they are placed into service.
Impairment

[n accordance with [AS 36 the carrving amounts of the Group’'s non-financial assets other than inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, the recaverable amount is estimated at each reporting
date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its value in use and its fair value, less costs to sell. In
assessing value in uwse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current marhet assessments of the time value of money. and the risks specific 10 the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing. assets are grouped together into the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Groups of assets (the cash generating unit).

4



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrving amount of'an asset or its cash-generating unit‘Group of units exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are altocated [irst to reduce the carrying amount of any intangible asset allocated to the unit and then 1o
reduce e canrying amount of other assets i the unit on a pro-rala basis.

Impairment losses. on assets other than goodwill. recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date lor any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrving
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment. less residual amounts. using the straight line
method, over their following estimated useful lives:

Plant and machinery 3t0 15 years
Fixtures and Fittings 510 10 years
Computer Fquipment 3o 3 years
Leasehold improvements 18 vears

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assct are classified as
tinance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment losses.

Asscts under construction are not depreciated until they are placed into service.
Fleritage Assets andd Tungible Design Archive

Heritage assets consist of a silverware, paintings and furniture. The Group's tangible design archive consists of artwork, printers”
impressions, pattern books and fabric swateh books. The design archive is deemed to have an indefinite useful life and the Group
continues 1o use the archive to inspire fabric designs. which generate sales and profit. The Group's heritage assets are tangible
assets with historical and artistic qualities and consist of silverware, paintings and furniture. These are deemed to have an
indefinite useful life and are tested for impairment annually in line with IFRS.

Employee benefits
Defined comribution pluns

A defined contribution plan is a post-ecmployment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a scparate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered
by employees.

fud
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICEES (continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of fitture benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the prior periods: that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price) are deducted. The Group determines the net inlerest
on the net defined benefit liability‘asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benetit obligation
at the beginning ol the annual period to the net defined benefit Habilityv/assel.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to
be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benetit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses. the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in other
comprehensive income and all other expenses related 1o defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in the income
statement.

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed. the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment. is recognised immediately in the income statement when the plan amendment or
curtaifment occurs.

The calculation of the defined benetit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group. the recognised asset is limited to the present value of benefits available in
the form ot any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the adverse effect of any
minimum funding requirements.

Share-based puvment trunsactions

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group receives goods ur services as consideration for its own equity instruments
are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions. regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the
Group.

‘The grant date fair value of share-based payments awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The fair value
of the awards granted is measured using an option valuation model. taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
awards were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which the
related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met. such that the amount ultimately recognised as an
expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting
datc. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions. the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is
measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for ditferences between expected and actual outcomes.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or services by incurring a liability to transfer cash or other
assets that is based on the price of the Group's equity instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. The fair
value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as an expense. with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period
in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to pay ment. The liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and at
settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expensc in profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired 1o settle the obligation. If the effect is
material. provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ar a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessients of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are staled at the lower of cosl and net realisable value. Cost is based on the standard cost principle and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production ar conversion costs and other costs in bringing them to their existing
location and condition.

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents

eivable for goods provided in the normal course of business, net of s1aff discounts and is stated net of value added tax and ether
sales-related taxes. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good and thus has the
ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good.

Revenue on Flagship store sales ol goods and commission on congession sales are recognised when goods are sold to the
customet. E-commerce and Liberty Fabric Limited sales are recognised when the goods are shipped to the customer.

Breakage revenue from gift vouchers and gift coins sold by the Group is recognised based on historic redemption rates and
subsequently on redemption of the gift voucher or gift coin.

Customer incentives are recognised as a performance obligation as they arise and are deducted from revenue in the period in
which they are accrued.

I is the Group's policy to sell its retail products to the end customer with a right of return. Accumulated experience ts used to
consider the need for a provision for such returns on an annual basis.

The company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements excluding commissions eamed from concessions
sales as it controls the services and is responsible for risk associated with the service before transfer to the customer.

Expenses

Cast of sales

Cost of sales comprises the cost of goods sold. together with the direct costs incurred i managing and operating the Group's
operating activities.

Fxceptional items

Exceptional items are non-recurring material items which are outside the normal scope of the Group’s ordinary activitics.

Finance income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest expense. the amortisation of deferred financing costs, net tair value losses on derivatives
and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency accounting policy ).

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. dividend income. net tair value gains on derivatives and net foreign
exchange gains that are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency accounting policy). Interest income and expense
is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis,

Taxation

Tax on the profit or foss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates {o items recognised directly in equity. in which case it is recognised in equity.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICEES (continued)

Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax assets and habilities arise from timing differences between the recognition of gains and losses in the financial
statements and their recognition for taxation purposes. In accordance with |AS12, deferred tax is provided in respect of all timing
ditferences that have originated. but not reversed, at the reporting date. that may give rise to an obligation (o pay more ov less tax
in the future. Deterred tax is not recognised when fixed assets are revalued unless by the reporting date there is a binding
agreement to sell the revalued assets and the pain or loss expected (o arise on sale has been recognised in the financial statements.

A deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when. on the basis of all avaitable evidence it can be
regarded as more likely than not. that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Leases

Leases are recognised on the statement of financial position with both an asset and liability. At inception. the asset and liability
are of equal value.

Operating leases of low value or short term leases are recorded as an expense in the income statement as they are incurred. taken
as an IFRS 16 practical expedient.

The [ease Habilities are initially measured at the present vatue of the lease payments that are not yet paid at the commencement
date. discounted using the ingremental borrowing rate. on a portfolio basis. Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost and are increased by the interest charge and decreased by the lease payments made. Lease liabilitics are
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or as appropriate, changes
in the assessment of whether a renewal option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a break clause is reasonably certain not o
be exercised. The Group have exercised judgement as to whether these should be used to determine the lease Tiability

Right-of-use asscts arc subsequently measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairinent losses. adjusted tor
certain remeasurements of the Lease liabilities. The asset is depreciated on a straight line basis overthe life of the lease.

Debt/equity

Under EAS 32, preference shares are classed as equity instruments in the financial statements as:

¢ the preference shares include no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset 1o another entity: and

s they include no contractual obligation 10 exchange {inancial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer,

Treasury Shares

Where any group company purchases the company s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid. including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the company s equity holders
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued. any consideration received. net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
company’s equity holders.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

2. REVENLE

The Group has disaggregated revenue into various categories in the following table which is intended 1o depict the nature, amount

and timing of revenue and cash flows,

Selling channel

52 week period ended 29 January 2022
Liberty Retail

Liberty Fabrics

Other

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Geographical market*

52 week period ended 29 January 2022
United Kingdom

EMEA

APAC

Americas

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Selling channel

52 week period ended 30 January 2021
Liberty Retail

Liberty Fabrics

Other

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Geographical market*

52 week period ended 30 January 2021
United Kingdom

EMEA

APAC

Americas

Total revenue from contracts with custonters

Liberty Brand
21552

54463

2.019

78,034

Liberty Brand
28,959

19927

21.725

7423

78,034

Liberty Brand
19.934

45.737

2.201

67.872

Liberty Brands
25703

16.098

21245

4.826

67.872

Product types

Other Brands Total
56,408 77,960
13,454 67,917
1.705 3,724
71,567 149,601
Product types
Other Brands Total
58.113 87,072
13.454 33,381
- 21,725
- 7423
71,567 149,601
Product types
Other Brands Total
35.5310 55,444
12.169 57.906
1.846 4,047
49.5258 117,397
Produoct types
Other Brand ‘Total
37,350 63.059
12169 28,267
- 21,245
- 4,826
49,525 117,397

All revenue from contracts with customers is recognised on transfer of goods at a point in time. The performance obligations for
cach revenue stream are explained in the accounting policies in note 1. I'rade receivables arising from revenue is included in note
12, Inciuded within Liberty retail revenue is £884.000 (2021 £110.000}) in relation to breakage.

*Based on the country of sale.

3.  OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

Depreciation-plant and equipment owned
Deprectation right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors” remuneration:
Audit of these financial statements
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries
Non audit services
Exceptional items
Foreign exchange (gains) losses

52 week period ended 52 week period ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021

(restated)
£000 £000
5,220 4.853
4,130 4.096
2,218 2821

182 128
200 167

- 70
1,433 3.609
(915) 369



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

3. OPERATING PROFIT (CONTINU ED)

Exceptional items
Non-recurring transactions outside the ordinary course of business are treated as exceptional items.

Impairment of goodwill £545.000 (2021; £nily. Change in accounting policy in relation tw Cloud Computing £nil (2021 £9§.000).
One off refurbishment costs in relation to the Flagship store £888.000 (2021: £510.000). Restructuring costs of £nil were incurred
in the period as a result of a review of the business structure (2021: £1.257.000). Dual running costs of £nil were incurred in the
period as result of the short-term Grosvenor Square office building lease. This project is now complete and as such. going
forward, no further costs will be incurred (2021 £739.000). One off bad debt proviston of £nil relating 1o potentially
non-recoverable VAT in Italy (2021: £1.012,000).

4. STAFF COSTS AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the period. analysed by category,

was as follows:

52 week period

532 week period

ended ended

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

Number Number

Design and Production 197 178
Selling and distribution 349 375
Administration 120 134
666 687

The aggregate pavroll costs of the persons were as follows:

52 week period

352 week period

ended ended

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

(restated)

£000 £7000

Wages and salaries 24,007 23.575
Social security costs 2,218 2.051
Other pension costs 1,024 911
Share-based payment 305 (292)
Grant income (594) (3.000)
26,960 23.243

In respect of the grant income. the group claimed amounts from HMRC in respect of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme

(CRJS) totalling £594.000 (2021: £3.000.000).

Directors emoluinents

Remuneration of £1.204,000 (2021: £1.073.000} was paid by subsidiary companies in respect of three {2021 : three) Directors
services. It is not possible to apportion these amounts for qualifying services to this company.

The highest paid Director received remuneration. including benefits. of £850.000 (2021: £749.000). including pension
contributions of £28.000 (2021: £28.000). Retirement benefits were accruing to twa directors (2021: one) in respect of defined
contribution pension schemes.

No other fees were paid to Directors in respect to services provided (2021 nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

5. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Finance income arose as [oHlows:

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
£0060 £7000

Finance income
Interest income on cash deposits 2 |
Interest on pension scheme assets 490 12
Giain on translation of loan 922 -
Gain on termination of forward contracts - 87
Other inferest income - 147
Total finance income for the period 964 237

52 week period

32 week period

ended ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
(restated)
£7000 £000

Finance expense
Interest on loans {7,203) (6,278)
Amortisation of deferred finance costs (986) (733}
Loss on translation of loan - (369
Lease liability interest (2.802) (3.145)
Overdraft interest expense {(39) e
Other interest expense (36) (39)
Total finance expense for the period (11,066) (10,648

6. TAXATION

The taxation charge for the period in the Income Statement arose as follows:

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
{restated)
£°000 £000
Current Tax
Total Overseas tax suffered in the period 1.861 1.280
Adjustment in relation o prior period 2 -
Total current tax for the peried 1.863 1.280
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences (2,215) (5.463)
Effect of tax rate change 1,710 1.470
Adjustments in relation to prior periods - (-4}
Total deferred tax for the period (505) (3.997)
Tax charge-(credit) recognised in income statement 1,147 (2.77h
Tax charge/(credit) recognised in other comprehensive income 211 57
Total tax charge/{credit) 1,358 (2,717)
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

6.  TAXATION (Continued)

The average current tax charge for the peried difters (2021: difters) from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%

(2021: 19%,). The differences are explained below;

52 week period
ended
29 January 2022

52 weeh period
ended

30 January 2021

(restated)
£'000 £000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax {7,165) {23,088)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the average rate for the period of 19% (2021 (1,361) {+4.387)
19%)
Eflects oi’
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 2 ()
Income not subject to tax 1,062 (499)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (1,145) 282
Other short term timing differences 17 (34)
Ciroup retief {surrendered)-claimed 3 -
Other permanent differences (%) (70}
Overseas tax rate higher than UK tax rate 506 302
Other fixed asset timing differences 144 88
Amounts directly transferred to OCL or other 211 57
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates 1,710 1.470
Deferred tax not recognised 154 78
Total taxation charge/(credit) 1,358 {(2.717)

Included in other comprehensive income is a tax charge of £211,000 (2021: £57.000), in respect of the defined benefit pension

scheme.

Deferred taxes reflected in these financial statements have been measured using enacted tan rates at the balance sheet date. The

UK corporation tax rate of 19% is due to remain (effective 1 April 2020).



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Design Brand  Congession Customer  Computer Other ‘Total
Archive Portfolio Agreements Relationships  Software
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £°000 £7000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 February 2020 (restated) 33,942 42931 73,400 1000 11,51 8,787 9 171,539
Additions - 663 - - - 3.682 3 +.338
Impairment E - - - - - - -
Fransiiss - - - - - - -
Exchange difterences - - - - - - - -
A 30 Junwary 2021 (restated) 33047 43594 73,400 1,000 11,500 12,439 22 175,897
Additions - 733 - - - - - 733
Impairment (545 - - - - - - (543)
Iransters - - - - - 1,033 - 1,833
Exchange diflerences - - - - - - - -
At 29 January 2022 33,397 44,327 73,400 1,0 11,500 13,472 22 177,118
Amortisation and impairment
At | February 2020 (restated) - - - (770 (6,445) (6,762) - {13.977)
Amortisation - (181 - (125} (1.045) (1.17h - {2.821)
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Exchanpe ditferences - - - - - - - -
At 30 January 2021 (restated) - {-181) - (895) (7,490 (7,932) - (16,798)
Amortisation - 181 - (10%) (1.043%) (1.549 - {2.218)
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Exchanae differencees - - - - - - - -
AL 29 Jannary 2022 - - - {1,000) (8,535 (9,481) - {(19.0106)
Net hook value
At 29 January 2022 33397 44,327 73400 - 2,965 3,991 22 138,102
At30 January 2021 (restated) 33,942 43,113 73.400 105 4,010 4,507 22 159.099

The carrying valuc of goodwill is allocated to each cash generating unit as fellows:

29 January 2022

30 January 2021

£000 £'000
Retail 22,585 22,585
Wholesale 10,707 £0.707
Christys 105 630
Total 33,397 33.942

The brand portfolio and design archive intangible assets are deemed to have an indefinite economic life due to the durability ot
the underlying business which has been demonstrated over many years. The customer relationships and concession agreements

intangible assets were assessed to have a useful economic life of {1 years and 8 years, respectively.

Concession agreements and customer relationships are reviewed annually for impairment and amortised over their useful

economic lives, The amortisation charge is recognised in administration costs in the income statement.

The additions within the design archive relate to capitalised salaries which have an indefinite useful economic life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2422

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill. the design archive and the brand portfolio are not amortised but tested for impairment annually. Value in use
caleulations underpinning the fair value are contrasted against financial performance in the period and forecast cash {lows based
on the 2022/23 budget and four year plan. both of which have been approved by the Board.

I'he key assumptions used in value in use caleulations are:
e  Sales: projected sales are built up with reference to trading channels. They incorporate projected growth targets based on:
past performance, historical growth rates and developments in key markets.

e LEBITDA Margins: projected margins reflect historical performance and the impact of all completed projects to improve
operational efticiency and leverage scale. The projections do not include the impact of future restructuring projects to which

the Group is not yet committed.

*  Discount rate: the discount rate has been calculated based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital and risks
specific to the CGU being tested. A pre-tax rate of 11.5% has been used for the impairment testing (2021: 13%).

e Terminal growth rate: Terminal growth of 2% has been applied bevond the 5 vear period (2021: 2%).

After undertaking a full impairment review. the goodwill allocated to the Christys brand amounting to £5-45.000 has been impaired

to nil due to the underlying performance of the business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Design Archive Fixtures and Computer Plantand  Leasehold Assets Under  Total
and Heritage Fittings  Equipment Machinery improvements Construction
Assets
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'(00
C'ost
At 1 February 2020 (restated) 6.100 8,623 3179 12,657 - 6,299 36,858
Additions - 4.383 293 500 - 1.530 6,700
Drispasuls - - - - - - -
ramelers - 1,571 1,915 - - (3.486) -
txchange differences - 704 33 (229} - - S08
At 30 January 2021 (restated) 6,100 15,281 5,420 12,928 - 4,343 14,072
Additions - 221 26 1,461 - 6,270 7,978
Dispasals - (8) - - - - (8)
[Tansfers - 433 176 - 7.346 {9.008) (1,033)
Exchange differences - (233 2 {408) - - (639)
At 29 January 2022 6,100 15,714 5,624 13,981 7.340 1,005 50,370
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 February 2020 (restated} - {5,481) (2.445) (1.814) - - (12.740)
Depreciation (60) (2.138) (1.172) (1.483) - - (4.833)
Disposals - - - - - - “
Exchange differences - 74 1 | - - 76
AL 30 January 2021 {restated) (60) (7,5435) (3,616} (6,296) - - (17.517)
Depreciation 60 (2.630) (1.045) (1.472) (133) - (5.220)
Disposals - 8 - - - - 8
Exchange differences - 279 (1) (4) - - 274
AL 29 January 2022 - (9,888) (1,662) (7.772) {133) - (22,455)
Net book value
At 29 January 2022 6,100 5,826 962 6,209 7,213 1,605 27,915
At 30 January 2021 (restated) 6,040 7,736 1,804 6,632 - 4,343 26,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

9. LEASES

Right of Use Asset

The Group's leases consist ol real estate. vehicles and computer equipment.

Real Estate Vehicles  Computer software Total

£000 £000 £'000 £'000

At 1 February 2020 (restated) 61,685 56 15 61,856

Additions 367 128 90 585

Depreciation (3981 {57) (37) {4,096)

A1 30 January 2021 (restated) 58,070 127 148 58,345

Additons 477 35 11 523

Depreciation (4,002) (55) {(73) (4,130)

Net book value at 29 January 2022 54,5145 107 86 54,738

Lease Liability
Current Non-current Total
£000 £000

At 1 February 2020 (restated) 1,755 61.955 63,710
Additions 448 137 585
Interest 3,145 - 3,145
Lease payments (5.200) - (5.206)
Transfers 1,924 (1.924) -
At 30 January 2021 (restated) 2,006 60108 62,234
Additions 221 302 523
Interest 2,802 - 2,802
Lease pavments (5.090) - (5.090)
Transters 2,288 (2.288) -
2.287 58.182 60,469

The weighted average discount rate of the leases is 4.64%.

Transfers are the movements of leases from non-current to current liabilities at the end of the period.

The Group has not applied the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases and has

in¢luded them in the above,

10. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS

Pensions overall summary

Liberty Retail Limited operates a detined contribution pension scheme and a defined benefit pension scheme, The defined benefit
scheme has been closed to new entrants since February 2001 and was closed to future benefit accrual with effect from | January
2007.

In addition, Liberty Japan Co Limited operates a detined benefit pension scheme. The Liberty Japan Co Limited pension scheme
commenced on the | October 2003 and remains open to new entrants.

The assets of all pension schemes of the Company are held in separate trust administered funds.

The defined benefit plan operated by Stamperia Olenia SRL relates to statutory severance benefit which is a legal requirement for
ltalian companies.

Defined contribution schemes

During the period. the Group paid £623.000 (2021: £309.000} in respect of contributions to defined contribution pension schemes
operated on behalf of Group employees.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

10, POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS (continued)

Defined benefit schemes

A summary of the total present value of emplovee benefits is set out in the table below:
29 January 2022 3{ January 2021

£:000 £000
Summary
Cumulative ngt asset ot UK scheme 3,657 2.877
Total defined benefit asset 3,657 2877
Cumulative net liabilities of Japanese scheme (340 (313
Cumulative net liabilities of Italian statutory severance benefit (317) (367)
Total defined benefit liability (657) (680)

UK defined benefit schemes

The contributions to the defined benefit scheme during the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022 amounted to £nil (2021:
£500.000). The contribution rate is determined by an independent qualified actuary. using the projected unit method. on the basis
of triennial valuations. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2019 by the Scheme's independent qualified actoary.

The scheme is closed to future benefit accrual, there is no expected contribution rate for future periods. however there are deferred
amounts due. Liberty Retail Limited expects to contribute deferred amoums of £1.013.000 to the detined benefit scheme in the
next financial period.

Actuarial valuation

A fult actuarial valuation of the UK defined benefit scheme was carried out ar 30 June 2019 by a qualified independent actuary.
resulting in changes to the pre and post retirement discount rate. An 1AS19 valuation bas been prepared as at 29 Junuary 2022 by
the actuary based on assumptions sct by the Company and is reflected in these financial statements. The assumptions used by the
actuary arc those approved by the Trustees of the Pension Scheme and in the actuary's opinion, are the best estimates chosen from
a range of pussible actuarial assumptions. Due to the timescale covered, these assumptions may not necessarily be borne out in
practice. The major assumptions used by the actuary are shown in the following table:

532 week period 52 week peried
ended ended
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
Discount rate of scheme liabilitics at period end 2.3% 1.5%
Inflation per annum (RP1) 3.4% 2.9%
Intlation per annum (CP1) 2.8% 2.3%
Rate of increase per annum in pensions in payment
accrued before 5 April 1997 3.0% 3.0%
Rate of increase per annum in pensions in payment
accrued after 5 April 1997 3.3% 2.9%
Percentage of maximum cash allowed taken by members 75% 75%
Forecast life expectancy for male currently aged 60 87 87
Forecast life expectancy for temale currently aged 60 90 89
Forecast life expectancy at 60 for male currently aged 40 88 88
Forecast life expectancy at 60 for female currently aged 40 9 91

The forecast life expectancy assumption is based on a male. aged 60.

The mortality assumption for the period ended 29 January 2022 was 83 (Pension) with CMI 2020 projections and a long-term rate
of improvement of 1.25% pa.
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10. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS (continued)

Actunarial valuation (continued)

The overall expected return on assets is calculated as the weighted average of expected returns on cach individual asset class. The
expected return on equities is the sum of intlation, the dividend vield, economic growth and investment expenses. The return on
gilts and bonds is the current market yield on long term gilts and bonds. The expected return on other assets is set equal to
expected inflation.

Assumptions relating 1o the rate of increase in salaries at 29 January 2022 are not applicable because the Scheme was closed 1o
future benefit accrual with effect from 1 January 2007.  As the scheme is closed to future benefit acerual. there is no expected
contribution rate for future service.

Movement of deficit in the UK defined benefit pension scheme of Liberty Retail Limited

52 week period 52 week period

ended ended
29 January 30 January
2022 2021
£00¢ £°000
Amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
Present value of funded obligation (27,260) (30.453)
Fair value of scheme assets 30,917 33.330
Net Asset in Statement of Financial Position 3,657 2.877
Expense/(Income) recognised in Income Statement
Net interest on the net defined benefit asset (40) {42)
Administration expenses 372 310
Expense recognised in Income Statement 332 268
Movement in fair value of Scheme assets
At start of period 33.330 32,658
Administration costs incurred 372) (310)
Contributions paid by the Group - 500
Benefits paid by the Scheme (1,166) (965)
Expected return on Scheme assets in finance income 488 549
Actuarial gains: (losses) on Scheme asscets recognised in equity (1,363) 398
Fair value of Scheme assets at period end 30,917 33.330
Growth assets (Equitics) 3,103 2.963
Bond funds 19,311 21,160
Matching assets 7,925 8.392
Other inycstments 578 815
Fair value of scheme assets 30,917 33.330
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations
At start of period 30,453 30313
Benefits paid by the scheme (1,166) (963)
Interest cost in finance expense 448 507
Actuarial Josses: {gains) recognised in equity (2,475) 596
Present value of defined benefit obligations at period end 27,260 30.453
Cumulative asset at start of period 2,877 2.343
Actuarial gains/ (losses) recognised directly in equity during period 1,112 302
Contributions paid by the Company - 500
{Expense) Income recognised in income stateiment (332) (268)
Cumulative asset at period end 3,657 2877
Actual retnrn on Scheme assets 3,808 1.447

Included within Other Comprehensive Income is a deferred tax charge of the defined benetit pension asset amounting to £211.000
(2021: £57,000).

48



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

10. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSION (continued)

The fair values of both the UK and Fapan scheme assets are not intended 10 be realised in the shart term and may be subject o
significant change betore they are realised. The present value of'the schemes’ liabilities is derived from cash flow projections over
long periods of time and is thus inherently unceriain. However. both tables represent the Trustee's and the actuary's best estimate

of'the deficit in the schemes at the dates referred to.

Analysis of amount recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

52 week period 52 week period

ended ended

29 January 30 January

2022 2021

£'000 £7000

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets in UK 1,363 (898)
Actuarial {gains)/losses due to changes in financial assumptions (2.450) 723
Actuarial {gains)/losses due to changes in demographic assumptions (40) 98
Actuarial {gains)]osses due to liability experience 15 (225)
(1.112) (302)

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets in Japan (57) (143)
Actuarial eain; (loss) in consolidated statement of comprehensive income (1,169} (145)

A summary of the current period is as follows:

29 January

30 January

2022 2021
UK scheme £'000 £°000
Fair value of scheme assets 30,917 33.330
Present value of defined benefit obligations (27,260) {(30.453)
Asset 3,657 2.877
Net Asset in Statement of Financial Position 3.057 2877
Expericnce gains/ (losses) arising on Scheme assets 1,363 (898)
Expetience losses arising on Scheme tabilitics 15 (225}

Risks associated with the UK Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Asset volatility

Changes in bond yields

Inflation risk

Life expectancy

The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond vields: if
assets under perform this yield. this will create a deficit. The Scheme is invested primarily in
growth assets, corporate bonds and lability matched assets. The growth assets. though expected to
outperform corporate bonds in the long-term, create volatility and risk in the short-term. The
allocation to growth assets is monitored by the Trustees to ensure it remains appropriate given the
Scheme's long term objectives.

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the Scheme's liabilities for
IAS 19, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the Scheme’s bond
holdings.

A proportion of the Scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will
lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases. caps on the level of inflationary increases are in
place to protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the assels are either unaffected by or
only loosely correlated with inflation. meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the
deficit.

The majority of the Scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits tor the lite of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.
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10. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AND PENSIONS (continued)

Sensitivity to key assumptions

The key assumptions used for LAS 19 are: discount rate, inflation and mortality. The sensitivity of the results to these assumptions
is as fotlows:-

29 January 2022

Scheme assets DBO Surplus
£000 £000 £'000
Current figures 30917 (27.260} 3.657
Following a 0.25%0 p.a. decrease in the discount rate 30917 (28,270} 2.647
Following a 0.25%¢ p.a. increase in the RPI inflation assumption 30917 (27.708) 3.209
Following an increase in the life expectancy ol one vear 30917 (28,610 2.3067
30 January 2021
Scheme assets bBO Surplus
£000 £000 £1000
Current figures 33,330 (30.:453) 2.877
Followig a §.25% p.a. decrease in the discount rate 33.330 (31.603) 1.727
Following a 0.25% p.a. increase in the RP! inflation assumption 33,330 {30.594) 2.736
Following an increase in the life expectancy of one year 33.330 (31.910) 1420

The sensitivity information shown above is approximate and has been determined taking into account the duration of the Tiabilities
and the overall profile of the Scheme membership. This is the same approach as has been adopted in previous periods.

Maturity Profile of the Scheme

The defined benefit obligation includes benefits for deferred pensioners and current pensioners. Some of the deferred pensioners
are still current employees, but this does not directly impact their benefits from the Scheme as there is no longer a link between
their salary and their Scheme benefits,

The defined bencfit obligation is broadly split 40%.60% between deferred pensioners and current pensioners. The Scheme
duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benefit payments are made, For the Scheme as a whole, the duration is

around 16 years,

1. INVENTORIES

29 January 30 January

2022 2021

£000 £ 000

Raw materials 9,084 6.658
Work in progress 1,175 1.719
Finished voods 24,993 20,005
35,252 28.382

£82.475.000 (2021: £57.640.000) of inventory was recognised within cost of sales in the period.

£663,000 (2021: £3.251.000) of inventory provisions were expensed to the consolidated income statement during the period, in
line with sales of discontinued and discounted stock and movement in the provision.

The net realisable value of inventory is reviewed on a divisional basis. Retail inventory is assessed by season. The wholesale
division provisioning is based on the achieved margin for each product line. Imperfect and obsolete inventory is fully provided
for.

A
<



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

29 January 30 January | Februan

2022 2021 2020

{restated)  (restated)

£'000 £'000 £'000

Trade receivables 12.318 14.137 11,392
Other receivables 1,702 4.285 5.566
Prepayments 601 1.355 1.515
14,621 19,777 18.473

The Group's exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 17,

A receivable represents the right to consideration that is inconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before time is
required before payment is due,

13. TAX RECOVERABLE/(PAYABLE)

2% January 30 January

2022 2024
£'000 £°000
Japanese corporation tax (186} (310)
Italian corporation tax (178) 310
(364) -
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

14, DEFERRED TAX LIABILATY

The deferred tax assets and liabilities arose as follows:

Short term Intangible Recognised Accelerate Total
timing Assets Losses dcapital  Liability

differences allowance
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Broushl forward at 2 February 2020 (previously reported) {307) (20,533} 1.527 3.720 (15,593)
Brought forward at 2 February 2020 (restated) 1.031 (20,333} 3.258 3.782 (12.462)
Movement in the period 857 302 3.690 614 5,463
Rate change 122 (2.4106) 385 443 (1.,466)
Brought forward at 31 January 2021 2,010 (22,647} 7.331 4.841 (8,465)
Movement in period 1.240 138 308 720 2,406
Rate change 1.027 (7.034} 2.350 1.756 (1.901)
Closing asset’(liability) as at 29 January 2022 4,277 (29.543) 9,989 7,317 (7,960)
29 January 30 January 1 February
2022 2021 2020
{restated)  (restated)
£'000 £000 £000
Deferred tax asset 21,583 t4.182 8.072
Deferred lax liability (29,543)  (22.647)  (20.534)
Wet deferred tax asset/(liability) (7,960) (8.465) {12.462)

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

| IFebruary 2020

(restated) {restated)
Deferred tax assets not provided £'000 £'000 £'000
Trading tax losses 3,208 2518 2.253
Deferred tax assets not recognised at period end 3,208 2518 2,253

Deferred tax assets not provided

The Group has gross tax assets totalling £13.1m (2021: £13.3m) on which deferred tax assets have not been recognised. The
potential deferred tax asset of £3.2m (2021: £2.5m), the majority of which rclates to losses, has not been recognised on the
consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 29 Junuary 2022 due to uncertainty as to timing and use of these net tax assets,
particularly the trading losses which are restricted in their use. these net tax assets have not been recognised as an asset in the
consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 29 January 2022 but continue to be available as required.

No deferred tax lability is provided in respect of future remittance of earnings of foreign subsidiaries where the Group is able to
control the remittance of carnings and it is probable that such carnings will not be remitted in the foreseeable future or where no

liabHity would arise on remittance.

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29 January 2022

30 january 2021 | February 2020

(restated) {restated)

£000 £000 £000

Trade payables 18,362 15978 2171t
Other payables 6.358 3.614 3.818
Other tax and social security 813 630 348
Accruals 15,890 13.708 11.408
41,423 35931 37.285

The Group's exposure o currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 17,

L

2



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

16. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The Group's loans at the reporting date were as follows:

29 January

30 January

2022 2021
£'000 £7000
Nown-current liabilities
Secured bank loans 92,301 90.293
Finance leases - 567
92 301 90,860
Current liabilities
Current portion of secured bank loans 8,190 1.686
Finance leases 527 377
8.723 2.263
Total loans and borrowings 101,024 03.123

Bank loans are disclosed net ot deferred financing fees which are amortised over the term of the debt.

The Group's loans bore variable rates of interest as at the reparting date as follows:

Currency MNominal interest rate Year of maturity Face value and carrying amount
29 January 2022 30 January 2021
£°000 £'000
Term l.oan Al GBP SONIA plus 8% 2024 46,456 44,632
Term Loan A2 IPY TONAR plus 8% 2024 6,394 6,581
Term Loan A3 GBP SONIA plus 8% 2024 4,960 4,797
Capital Expenditure Facility GBP SONIA plus 8% 2024 10,339 10.000
Revolving Credit Facility GBP SONIA plus 3%% 2023 15,000 10.000
Revolving Credit Facility GRBP SONIA plus 3% 2023 13,000 13.000
Term Loan Gruppo UBI EUR EURIBOR plus 2% 2024 4,278 5389
COVID Loun EUR Fixed 1.13% 2026 21 22
PPP Loan UsD Fixed 1% 2022 - 69
Landlord Loan GBp N/A 2024 2,188 -
Finance leases EUR ‘arious 2023 527 1,144
Total loans and borrowings 103,163 95,93
Deferred financing fees GBP N'A 2024 (2,139) (2.811)
101,024 93,123
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATFED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

17.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. together with their fair values at 29 January 2022, were as follows:

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

Carrying Fair Carrying  Fair value
amount value amount

£°000 £°000 £7000 £°000

Trade and other receivables 14,020 14,020 [8.422 i8.422
Cash and cash equivalents 22,240 22,240 12,578 £1.578
Bank [oans and borrowings (103,163 (103,163) (95.934) {95,934)
Lease liabilities (60,469) (60,469) (62.234) {62,234
Trade and other pavables {24.720) (24.720) (21,592 (21.592)
(152,092) (152.092) {148.760) (148.760)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. including estimated interest payments and excluding the eftect

of netting agreements:

Carrying Contractual l yearor 1to <2years 2 to <Syears

amount cash flows less
£000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £000
Bank loans 103.163 103,163 8.723 93.840 600
Interest payable 2243 12,316 6.398 5.007 1t
Iease liabilities 6,469 600,469 2,288 2,041 56.140
Total 165,875 175,948 17,409 101,788 56,751

Capital management policy

The group’s objectives when managing capital arc:

* tosafeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to

other stakeholders: and

* toensure sufficient liquid resources are available 1o meet the tunding requirement of its working capital ¢vcles and to fund

new projects where identified.

This is achieved through ensuring sufficient bank and other facilities are in place, alongside the continual monitoring of cashflow
forecasts and other financial key performance indicators. The below ratios are reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure covenant

compliance;

e Netleverage
e Liquidity
»  Minimum 12 month EBITDA

The group was covenant compliant throughout the period. The gearing ratios as at 29 January 2622 and 30 January 2021 are as

fotlows:
29 January 30 January
2022 2021
£'000 £°000
Total loans and borrowings (note 16) 101,024 93,123
Cash and cash equivalents (22,240) (12.578)
Net debt 78,784 80.545
Total share capital 107,561 101.361
Total capital (total assets less current liabilities) 277,910 277.673
Gearing ratio 28% 26%
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUNMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk
The interest payable above inctudes contractual interest payable on secured and unsecured bank loans. The Acquisition Financing
rates of inferest vary in line with SONTA and TONAR. and in line with the consolidated Group ratio of debt 1o EBITDA.

The financial liability contractual maturity table includes interest payable at these fixed rates applied as at 29 January 2022
assuming no reduction in the interest rate from an improved debt 10 EBITDA covenant ratio.

Financial risks

The Group has exposure to the following principal financial risks in the operation and management of its business:
(1) Liquidity risk:

(it} Market risk:

(iti)  Credit risk: and

(iv) Investment impairment risk.

Set out below is information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks and the Group's objectives. policies and
processes for measuring and managing rish:

Liquidity risk
The Group's treasury policies are designed to ensure that sutTicient committed loan facilities are available to support current and

future business requirements. Cash and loan management is a core feature of the Board's business model and rolling cash flow
forecasts, updated on a weekly basis, are controlled by the Directors and senior executives to manage these requirements.

Liquidity risk - maturity analysis 29 January 2022 30 January 2021
Less than Over 1 vear l.ess than Over 1 year
1 vear 1 year
Financial liabilities £°000 £000 £000 £'7000
Trade and other payables 24,720 - 21.592 -

Market risk

Market risk that affects the Group is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates. foreign currency rates and equity
prices, will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Group's market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while secking to optimise refurns
to sharcholders. The Group does not enter into hedge contracts on a speculative or trading basis,

Market risk - Foreign currency risk

74% of the Group revenue and 64°6 of the Group’s purchases are denominated in Sterling, the Group's functional currency.
Payments in Yen accounted for 10%: payments in Euros accounted for 21%e and pay ments in US dollars accounted for 3% of total
payments in the period. Receipts in Yen accounted for 9%: receipts in Euros accounted for 14% and receipts in US dollaes
accounted for 3%6 of total receipts in the Period.

As 85% of the Group’s net assets are denominated in Sterling, the Group did not have a material exposure o foreign currency rish
at 29 January 2022. The remaining 15% of Group net assets are denominated in Japanese Yen and Euros,

The Senior Facilities Agreement includes a term [oan which is denominated in Yen, Accordingly, strengthening of Sterling against
the Yen did not have had a material net effect on the Group at 29 January 2022,
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 32 week period ended 29 January 2022

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(continued)

Credit risk

Credit rish is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails 10 meet its
contraciual obligations. The risk to the Group arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and from deposits
with tfinancial institutions.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, The demographics of
the Group's customer base. including the general detault risk in the principal sectors in which the Group operates. has less of an
influence on credit risk. The Group maintains credit insurance which protects against bad debts that may arise, with an excess of
the higher of £2.000 or 10% payable per claim.

The group deposits money with financial institutions and monitors the health and financial condition of those institutions,

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of {inancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
repotting date was:

29 January 2622 30 January 2021

£°000 £7000
Trade receivables 12,318 14.137
The ageing of trade receivables at 29 January 2022 was:
Trade receivables
Days past due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days =91 days Total
Estimated total gross 11,383 442 115 140 727 12.807
carrying amount at default
bstimated credit loss 0 (3%) (35) (i {108} (489)
Fxpected credit foss rate 0.0% 7.9% 30.4% 7.9% 56.1% 31.8%
The ageing of rade receivables at 20 January 2021 was:
Trade receivables
Days past due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-99 days >91 days Total
Estimated total gross 12.601 1.104 83 114 890 14,792
carrying amount at default
I-stimated credit loss (28) (3%) (36} (12 {344 {655)
Lxpected eredit loss rate 0.2% 3.2% 43.2% 10.4%% 61.2% +4.4%

The impairment provision at 29 January 2022 of £489.000 (202 1: £653.000) relates to debts mainky from overseas customers that
arc not covered by insurance.

I'he Directors believes that no material amount of impairment allowance ts necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due
or past due by up te 120 days. The majority of the balance relates to customers that have good tinancial track records with the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUNMNENTS (continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the period was as tollows:

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

£'000 £°000
Balance brought forward {655) (229)
Increase in expected credit loss 166 (426)
Balance at end of period (489) (655)

The allowance account for trade receivables is used 1o record impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of
the amount owing is possible: at that point the amounts considered irrecoverable are written off apainst the trade receivables
directly.

Investment impairment risk

The directors understand the risks associated with the investments held by the entity and the fact that these risks relate to the
potential impairment of those investments. To identity any risk of impairment in a timely manner. the Group reviews the financial
performance of its investments on a regular basis. The directors are satis{ied with the performance of the investments and foresee
no change in this {or the toreseeable future,

18. PROVISIONS

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

(Restated)

£'000 £°000

Dissentient sharcholders 188 194
Balance at end of period 138 19

The provision relates to amounts due to the holders of preference shares who were bought out in 2019 and yet to claim the
proceeds of sale.

19. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

At 31 January 2022, the Group had a share-based payment arrangement in relation to the D1, D2 and D3 eordinary shares in the
Company. issued to certain employees of the Group, which are linked to the individuals continued employment in the Group. The
full terms of'the . D2 and D3 ordinary shares are set out in the Articles of Association of the Company.

Sunmiry of the arvangements as at 31 Janvary 2021

The D1 and D2 sharcs vest on an exit (being a sale or listing of the Group) and participate on an exit on proceeds above £250
million, Where an exit has not taken ptace by December 2023, the employees have an option to require the Company to acyguire
the shares at that time, based on the value of the Group at that time. Where this option is taken, half of the payment is made up
front and the other half of the payment is made one year later. The second payment is adjusted where EBITDA in the subseguent
financial year falls by more than 10%.

The DI and D2 shares have been classified as a compound share-based payment arrangement. with both an equity and
cash-settled component, given the emplovee has a choice of settlement. contingent on a future event.

)
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

19. SHARE BASED PAY MEN'E'S (continued)

The cash-seutled share-based payment charge has been recognised across the vesting period. being five years the irst tranche, and
six vears {or the second tranche.

The D3 shares are classified as an eguity-settled share-based payment arrangement. which vest on an exit (being a sale or listing
of the Group). The D3 shareholders participate on an exit on proceeds above £320 million. The share-based payment charge has
been recognised across the vesting period. being from grant date 10 the estimated date of an exit,

Modification in the year ended 3T January 21022

On 13 January 2022, the Company revised the terms of the D1, D2 and D3 shares, such that the amount of the participation on an
exit was adjusted. Following this. the DI, D2 and D3 shares participate in exit proceeds above £250 million and receive an
additional amount where the exit proceeds are above £260 million. This has been determined as a beneficial modification.

Reconciliation of owtstanding share-bused pavment arvangements

The number of shares subject to share-based pay ment arrangements are as follows:

DI ordinary shares D2 ordinary shares D3 ordinary shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year +.000 2.200 2.200
Granted during the year - - 200
Forfeited during the year - (200 (400}
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,600 2,000 2,600

Measmrement of share-hased pavment arrangements

The fair value of services received in return for the shares granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the shares
granted, using a Monte Carlo model.

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date, 31 January 2021, 13 January 2022 (at the date of
modification) and 31 January 2022 are as follows:

31 December 31 January 31 January 13 January 31 January

2018 20203 20214 20224 2022°%
Fair value — D1 and D2 £287.15 £630.43 £78.92 £68.47 £83.72
Fair value = D3 N/A £60-1.81 N/A £62.11 £83.72
LEquity value £177 million  £232 million £78 million £78 million  £78 million
Exercise price £542 £5.42 £5.42 £5.42 £542
Expected volatility (weighted average) 33.95% 37.20% 57.27% 63.75% 63.75%
Option life (weighted average) 4 vears 4 vears 3years 2 years 2 years
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.83% 0.41% (0.08%) 0.70°% 0.70%

I — for the purposes of the grant dote fuir value of the D and D2 shares

2= for the purposes of the reporting date fair value of the D and D2 shares, and grant date faiv vatue of the 13 shores
3 — for the purposes of the reporting date faiv value of the DT and D2 shaves

4 — for the purposes of immediately pre-modification of the DE D2 and 133 shares

3 — for the purposes of immediatelv post-modification of the D1 D2 and 33 shares, the veparting dare fuir valiue of the D1 and D2
shares: and the wrant date fair value of the additional 13 shares issued

The expected volatility has been based on a benchmarking exercise for the equity volatility of similar listed entities. Service
conditions and non-market performance conditions have not been taken inte account in the fair value measurement of the services
received.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

19. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (cuntinued)

The incremental fair value as a result of the modihication in January 2022 is £15.25 per share for the D1 and D2 shares. and
£21.01 for the D3 shares. The total expenses recognised for the year and the total liabilities recognised at the end of the vear
artsing from share-based payments are as follows:

Equity settled share-based payment expense

Cash settled share-based payment expense - (credit)

Total carrying amount of liabilities

2. SHARE CAPITAL

29 January 2022
£000

212
93

279

30 January 2021

{Restated)
£000

333
{625}

186

Allotted. called up and fully paid

29 January 2022
£7000

30 January 2021
£0600

Share capital (95,606,365 (2021: 93,206.,363) shares in issue)

A Ordinary shares of £0.01 (93,197.565 (2021: 93,197,565 shares in issue) 932 932
D1 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (4,000 {2021 4.000 shares in issue) - -
D2 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (2.200 (2021: 2.200 shares in issue) - -
D3 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (2.600 (2021: 2.600 shares in issue) - -

Preference shares of £0.01 (2.400.000 (2021 nil shares in issue) 24 -
Total parent company share capital 956 932

On 21 April 2021, the authorised. called up and fully paid share capital was increased by £24.000 by the issue of 2,400,000
preterence shares of £2.50 cach. The nominal value of the shares was £0.01 and the share premium arising was £3.976.000. These
shares were fully paid in cash.

In addition to the above. the shareholders have on commitment a further £4.000.000 10 cure any tuture liquidity concerns the
group may have in mecting its covenant requirements. This commitment is comitted until January 20235 and it dravwn will result in
a further issue of preference shares,

The Company’s issued share capital at 29 January 2022 comprises A ordinary shares plus D1, D2, [33 Management Incentive
Shares and preference shares. The A ordinary shares and the preference shares carry the right to vote. The 31, D2 and D3 shares
do not have any voting rights.

Dividends on ordinary shares

No ordinary dividends were declared during the period. Holders of A ordinary and preference shares are entitled to receive
dividends per share as declared periodically and are entitled to one vote per share at Shareholder meetings of the Company.

Share premium
29 January 2022 30 January 2021

£'000 £000
Premium on allotment of A Ordinary shares 100,581 [00.581
Premium on allotment of DI Ordinary shares 22 22
Premium on allotment of D2 Ordinary shares 12 12
Premium on allotment of D3 Ordinary shares 14 14
Premium on allotment of Preference shares 5,976 -
Total parent company share premium 106,605 100.629
Total parent company share capital and share premium 107,561 101.561
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

21, COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

Guarantees
Select entities ot the Group form the Obligor group which guarantee the Group's Senior Facilities.
Liberty Zeta Limited has guaranteed Stamperia Olonia SRL's obligations under its Term Loan Facility.

Some of the Company s subsidiaries have raken advantage of the exemption available under Section 479A of the Companies Act
2006 in respect of the requirement for audit. As a condition of the exemption. the Company has guaranteed the year-end liabilities
of the relevant subsidiaries until they are settled in {uli. The liabilities of the subsidiaries at the yvear-end was £3.254.000 (2021
£1,934.000).

Audit Exemption under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors consider that subsidiaries ot the Group are entitled to exemption trom the requirement to have an audit under the
provision of section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act™) and members have not required the company to obtain an audit
for the period in question in accordance with section 476 of the Act.

Liberty Zeta Limited has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they qualify lor the exemption from
audit under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the period ended 29 January 2022:

Liberty Gamma Holdings Limited
Liberty Alpha Limited

*  Liberty of London Limited

¢  Liberty Theta Limited

e  Liberty Kappa Limited

«  Liberty Investment Limited
o Christys and Co. Limited

o (W Headdress |Limited

o Liberty Lease Limited

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 with respect to
accounting records and the preparation of financial statements.

22, RELATEBD PARTY DISCLOSURES

Liberty Zcta Limited is the ultimate parent company of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors there is no ultimate controlling
party.

The land and buildings utilised by Stamperia Olonia SRL arc owned by one of the Directors of Stamperia Olonia SRL. Stamperia
Olonia SRL pays rent for occupying and utilising the tand and buildings. Rent of £604.000 (2021: £649.000) was paid during the
period. In addition Stamperia Olonia SRL pays to market its business to a company owned by one of the Directors of Stamperia
Olonia SRL. Marketing of £102.000 (2021: £100.000) was paid during the period.

In addition te the above, Liberty Retail Limited purchased goods totalling £82.000 (2021: £166.000). from other entities included
within the BlueGem tund portfolio. Liberty Fabric Limited sold goods totalling £nil (2021: £73.000} to another entity included
within the BlueGem fund portfotio.

During the year, the directors and connected parties of Liberty Zeta Limited have purchased goods amounting 1o £51.000 (2021:
£41.000) from Liberty Retail Limited. a wholly owned subidiary. No amounts were outstanding at the end of the year {2021: £nil).

The results of the company are not consolidated into the results of any other company.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

23. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In the post halance sheet period afler reviewing the obligations due under the April 2021 finance agreements and the pace ol
recovery currently planned the group re engaged with the lenders specifically on impending repay ment of the tinal £10.000,000 of
the CLIBLS loan that is due inJuly 2023, Afier being advised that an extension on the payment deadline is not allowed under the
rules of the CLIBLS loan the group entered into an amended finance agreement on 30th September which included the following :

¢ LU'pon repayment of the final £16.000.000 tranche of the original £15.000.000 CLIBLS loan in July 2023 the group
will have access to a new 0 month RCF facility with a value of £5.0600,000 for a period of 6 months.

¢ |enders have agreed for elements of fulure interest payment W be converted into debt.

¢ The group also agreed an extension of existing facilities. The RCF facility now expires in October 2024 compared to
July 2023 and the Senior Debt now expires in January 2025 compared 1o January 2024,
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 29 January 2022

29 January

30 January

! February

2022 2021 2020
(Restated)  (Restated)
Note £ 000 £°000 £°000
Assets
Non current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 3 101,860 101.368 100.724
Current assets
Trade and other receivables + 7,528 5.512 5507
Total assets 109,388 106.880 106.241
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 956 932 32
Share premium 106.605 100.6.29 100,629
Retained earnings‘(losses) 897 829 (18}
Share based payment reserve 544 333 -
Capital redemption reserve 104 104 104
Total Equity 199,106 102.827 101,647
Non-current liabilities
Cash settled share based payment liability 7 279 186 811
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables § 3 3.867 3.783
Total liabilities 282 4.033 4.594
Total equity and liabilities 109,388 106,880 106.241
The notes on pages 65 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 November 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

. . Share
Share Share Ret:_lmed Cap{ta] Capital based  Total
. o earnings / redemption o .

capital premium reserve  payment  equity

(losses) reserve reserve v
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at T February 2020 (previously

reported) 104,978 - (84) 104 (3.429) - 101,569
Reclassifications (104.046)  100.629 (12} - 3429 - -
Impact of prior year adjustments - - 78 - - - 78
Balance at | February 2020 (restated) 932 100,629 (18) 104 - - 101,647
Profit for the financial period (restated) - - 847 - - - 9
Share Based Payment - - - - - 333 1,270
Balance at 30 January 2021 (restated) 932 100,629 829 104 - 333 102,827
Profit for the financial period - - 68 - - - (119
Issue of preference shares 24 5976 - - - - 6,000
Share Based Payment - - - - - 211 398
Balance at 29 January 2022 956 106,605 857 104 - 544 109,106

The capital reserve was created on the expiry of an option Liberty Zeta held with three subsidiary companies to buy back its own

share capital.

The notes on pages 65 to 74 form part of these financial statements.



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

as at 29 Jannary 2022

52 week period

52 week period

ended ended

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

(restated)

£000 £000

Profit for the financial period 08 847

Adjustments to reconcile loss for the period to net cash flows

Share hased paymem (188) (937
Cash flows from operating activities

Change in trade and other receivables (2.016) 6

Change in trade and other pavables (3.864) 84

Net cash gencrated/(used in) operating activitics (6,000) -
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the issue of preference share capital 6,000 -

Net cash flows from financing activities 6,000 -

Opening cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Eifect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Closing cash and cash equivalents

The notes on pages 65 to 73 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 62 to 64 swere approved by the Board of Dircctors on 30 November 2022 and signed on its

behalf by:

Adil Mehboob-Khan
Director
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 532 week period ended 29 January 2022

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation
to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The linancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in the manner disclosed in Note | to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Under section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006. the Company is exempt from the requirement to present ils own income
statement. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its
Group.

fer) Statement of Complicinee

These financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards tn conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, The Company is taking advamage of the
exemnption in 3408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual statement of compreliensive income and related notes
that form a part of these approved financial statements. The Company's loss for the period was £119.000 (2021 (restated): loss of
£90.000).

Correction of prior year errors

The following prior year adjustments were identified and corrected in the prior year comparative financial information:

22 week period ended 32 week period ended
30 January 2021 1 February 2020

£000 £000
[FRS 2 - share based payment (1) 937 78
Increase in profit for the period arising from prior vear adjustments 937 78

The impact of prior year adjustments is sct out below:

»  Reclassification of various reserves from share capital and other reserves into share premium and capital reserve (2)

52 week period ended 30 January 2021 Aspreviously  Correction of  Reclassifications Restated Adjustments
reported errorsin the balance sheet
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 99.835 1.533 - 101.368 1
Share capital 104,978 - (104.046) 52 2
Share premium - - 100,629 100.629 2
Retained carnings {losses) (174) 1.015 (12) 829 2
Share based payment reserve - 333 - 333 !
Capitat Reserve (3.429) - 3.429 - 2
Cash scttled share based pavment liability - 186 - 186 l
Trade and other pavables (3429 {438} - (3.867) |
52 week period ended | February 2020 As previously Impact of Reclassifications Restated  Adjustments
reported correctionsin the balance sheet
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 99.835 889 - 100.724 1
Share capital 104,978 (3.417) {100.629) 932 2
Share premium - - 100.629 100.629 2
Retained earnings:(losses} (8 66 - (18) 2
Capital Reserve (3.439) 3429 - - 2
Cash settled share based payvment liability - 811 - 811 1
Trade and other pavables (3429 (355) - (3.78%) 1
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STAFEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The interest of the Company in the shares of subsidiary undertakings is stated at cost less any provision for impairment, The
carrying values ol [1xed asset investments are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumistances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable. An impairment is recognised by comparing the carrying amount to the higher of the recoverable
amount and value in use.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and medasuremeni

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition. as subsequent!y measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCHL and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the {inancial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a signiticant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price as disclosed in section (¢} Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCL. it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1Y on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to
as the SPPI1est and is performed at an instrument level.

Uinancial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. irrespective of
the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at tair value through
OC1 are held within a business model with the objective of both holding 1o collect contractual cash flows and selling,
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c.. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
Subscquent medasireme nt
For purposes of subsequent measurement, tinancial assets are classified in four categories:

s Financiat assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

+  Financial assets at fair value through OC1 with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

e Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition {equity instruments}

*  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTENUED)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instrimeniy)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR} method and are subject to
impairmient. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. medified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables. and loan to an associate and loan to a director included
under other non-current financial assets.

Finuncial assets af fuir value through OCH (debe insiriments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCL, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recoenised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OC]. Upon derecognition. the cumulative fair value change recognised in
OC] is recycled to protit or loss.,

The Group's debt instruments at fair value through OCIl includes investments in quoted debt instruments included under other
non-current financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fuir value through OCH fequity instranents)

Uipon initia} recognition. the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equily investments as equity instruments designated at fair
value through OCI when they meet the definition ol equity under {AS 32 Financial lnstruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never reeyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
statentent of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity instruments designated
at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessiment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.
Derecognition

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets}) is primarily
derecognised (i.e.. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. ot:

»  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full withaut material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement. it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transterred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset. the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case. the Group
also recognises an associated lability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has refained.

Continuing invalvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured ar the lower of the original
carn ing amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L. ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)
Impuirment
Furher disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

¢ Disclosures for significant assumptions

»  Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

e Trade receivables
The Group recagnises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
Nows that the Group expects o receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expecied cash
flows will include cash flows trom the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
Financial liabilitics
tritial recogrition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classilied. at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings. payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. AH financial
liabilities are recognised injtially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group's financial liabihties include rade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.
Stthsequent meastremei
For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial liabilitics are classified as below:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
Finumcial livbilities at amoriised cost (locns and borrowingsi
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subscquently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the Liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,
Amaortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category generally
applics to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
Derecognition
A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Offsenting of financial instrinmests

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise: trade and other receivables. cash and cash equivalents. loans and borrowings and
trade and other payvables.
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L. ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR PARENT COMPANY FINANCEAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities {continued)

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and measured for expected credit losses. A provision for impairment ot
trade receivables is also established when there is evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables, The movement in the provision is recognised in the income statement, Trade payables,
detined as financial liabilities in accordance with IFRS 9, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. All ofthe trade payables are non-interest bearing.

Share-based pavment transactions

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity
instruments are accounted for as equity-setiled share-based payment transactions. regardless of how the equity instruments are
obtained by the Company.

The grant date fair value of share-based payvments awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense. with a
corresponding increase in equity. over the period in which the emplovees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The fair
value of the awards granted is measured using an option valuation model. taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the awards were granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which
the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met. such that the amount ultimately recognised as an
expense is based on the number of awards that do mieet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting
date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is
measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and aclual outcomes.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company receives goods or services by incurring a liability to transfer cash or
other assets that is based on the price of the Company’s equity instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments.
The fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as an expense. with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over
the period in which the employvees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each balance sheet
date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as personnel expense in profit or loss.

Where the Company grants an equity-settled share-based pay ment arrangement to the employees of tts subsidiaries it recognises,
in its individual financial statements. an increase in the cost of investinent in its subsidiarics cquivalent to the equity-settled
share-based payvment charge recognised in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognised
directly in equity.

Where the Company grants a cash-settled share-based payment arrangement to the emplovees of its subsidiaries it recognises. in
its individual financial statements, an increase in the cost of investment in its subsidiaries equivalent to the cash-settled
share-based pavment charge based on the grant date fair value. Other movements in the cash-settled share-based payment lLiability
{i.e. those arising from subsequent changes in tair value) are recognised in the Company's income statement.

2. STAFF COSTS AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company had no employvees during the period. The Directors did not receive remuneration from the Company in respect of
their services to the Company during the period (2021: nil). Three Dircctors (2021: three) received remuneration from a
subsidiary of the Company.

3. INVESTMENTIN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

29
January 2022 30 January 2021
£'000 £'000
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 101,860 101,368

The results of all subsidiary undertakings of the Company have been included in the consolidated financial statements
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LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

3. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (continued)

Name of undertaking Principal Activity Classes of issued share  Percentage held within
capital held by the Group the Group

Liberty Theta Limited Financing Ordinary 100%%
Liberty Kappa Limited Financing Ordinary 100%
Liberty Alpha Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%%
Liberty Gamma Holdings Limited Holding company Ordinary 1040%
Liberty Limited Financing Ordinary 100%
Liberty Retail Limited Retaii Ordinary 100%0
Liberty Fabric Limited Wholesale Ordinary 100%,
Liberty Invesument Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%
Liberty Japan Co. Limited {1} Wholesale Ordinary 100%
Liberty Fabric Limited (2) Wholesales Ordinary 100%
Liberty Comercio e Industria de Tecidos Lida (3) Wholesale Ordinary 100%
Liberty {Shanghai) Trading Co. Limited (4) Wholesale Ordinary £00%0
Liberty of London Limited Whaolesale Ordinary 100%
C W Headdress Limited (5) Retail Ordinary 1 00%
Christy & Co. Limited (3) Relail Ordinary 100%
Stamperia Qlonia SRL (6) Manutacturing Ordinary 100%
Liberty Fabric Services Ttaly (7) Whotesate Ordinary 100%
Liberty Hong Kong Asia Pacific Limited (8} Holding company Ordinary 100%
Liberty Fabric Sales Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Lease Limited Holding company Ordinary 100%
Christys of London Limited (5) Dormant Ordinary 100%
Retail Stores Property Holdings Limited Holding company Ordinan 100%
Retail Stores Property Holdings No 1. Limited Dormant Crdinary 100%
Retail Stores Property Holdings No 2. Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Retail Stores Property Holdings No 3. Limited Dermant Ordinary 100%
Liberty (Regent and Tudor) Holdings No. | Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty (Regent and Tudor) Holdings Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Centres Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Tudor Property Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Tudor Property No 2. Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Properties Link Owner Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Praperties Link Owner No 2. Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%
Liberty Regent Street Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%

All entities are incorporated in England and Walces, except where detailed otherwise, and are registered at 210-220 Regent Strecet,
f.ondon, WI1B SALL

(1) Incorporated and vperates in Japan. Registered address: 2F Ebisu Park Plaza. 1-9-6 Ebisu Minamt, Shibuya-ku. Tokyo,
150-0022 Japan

(2) Incorporated and operates in the United States of America. Registered address: 584 Broadway. Suite 604. New York, 10012
(3) Incorporated and operates in Brazil. Registered address: 1164 Rua Piaut, Sao Paulo, Brazil

(4) Incorporated and operates in China. Registered address: 42F. Central Plaza, |8 Harbour Road. Wanchai, Hong Kong

(5) Registered address: Unit 7. Witan Park. Avenue 2. Station Lane. Witney. Oxfordshire. OX28 4FH

(6) Incorporated and operates in [taly. Registered address: Via A.Colombo 65. Gorla Minore. Varese. ltaly

(7Y Incorpurated and operates in Italy. Registered address: Via A.Colombo 61. Gorla Minore. Varese. ltaly

{8) Incorporated in Hong Kong. Registered address: 42/F Central Plaza. 18 Harbour Road. Wanchai. Hong Kong

In September 2022, strike ofl procedures were commenced in respect of all of the dormant companies with the exception of
Liberty Fabric Sales Limited. a UK incorporated company which holds an investment in Liberty Fabrics Italy Srl, a company
incorporated in laly
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4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

29 January 30 Januarny

2022 2021

£000 £7000

Qther receivables 2 -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 7,526 5.5142
7.528 5.5)2

Balances with subsidiary undertakings are payable on demand and are not interest bearing.

5. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29 January 30 January
2022 2021
£000 £7000

Other payables 3 3
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - 3.864
3 3.867

Balances with subsidiary underiakings are payable on demand and are not interest bearing.,

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The ¢carrying amounts of financiat assets and liabilities, together with their fair values at 29 January 2022, were as follows:

29 January 2022

30 January 2021

Carrving Fair Carrying  Fair value

amount value amount
£°000 £000 £°000 £7000
Trade and other receivables 7,258 7,528 5.512 3512
Trade and other pavables 3 (3) {3.867) {3.867)
(7,255} (7.235) (1.645) (}.645)

The Company has exposure te the following principal financial risks in the operation and management ofits business:

Investment impairment risk

The directors understand the risks associated with the investments held by the entity and the fact that these risks relate to the
potential impairment of those investments. To identify any rish of impairment in a timely manner. the Company reviews the
financial performance of'its investments on a regular basis. The directors are satisfied with the performance of the investments

and foresee no change in this lor the foresecable future.
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7. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The details of the Company's share-based payment arrangements are included in note 19 in the Group linancial statements,

The total charge recognised for the vear and the total liabilities recognised at the end of the year arising from share-based
payments are as follows:

30 January | February

29 January 2021 2020
2022 (Restated) (Restated)
£°000 £°000 £'000

(Cash-settled share-hased payvment charge recognised as an increase in investment in 467 1.123 889
subsidiary undertakings

Cash-settled share-based pavment credit recognised in the income statement (188) (937) (78)
Total carrving amount of liabilities 279 186 311

8.  SHARE CAPITAL

29 January 2022 30 January 2021

Allotted, called up and fully paid £000 £000
Share capital (95.606.365 (2021: 93.206.365) shares in issue)
A Ordinary shares of £0.01 (93.197.565 (2021: 93.197.563 shares in issue) 932 932

D1 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (4,000 (2021: 4,000 shares in issue) - -
D2 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (2,200 (2021: 2,200 sharcs in isste) - -

33 Ordinary shares of £0.01 (2,600 (2021: 2.600 sharcs in issue) - -
Preference shares of £0.01 (2,400.000 (2021: nil shares in issue) 24 -
Total parent campany share capital 956 G932

On 21 April 2021, the authorised. called up and fully paid share capital was increased by £24.000 by the issue of 2,400.000
preference shares of £2.50 cach, The nominal value of the shares was £0.01 and the share premium arising was £3,976.000. These
shares were fully paid in cash,

In addition to the above. the sharcholders have on commitment a further £4.000.000 to cure any future liquidity concerns the
aroup may have in meeting its covenant requirements. This commitment is comitted until January 2025 and if drawn will resultin
a further issue of preference shares.

The Company’s issued share capital at 29 January 2022 comprises A ordinary shares plus D1, D2 . D3 Management Incentive
Shares and preference shares. The A ordinary shares and the preference shares carry the right to vote, The D1, D2 and 123 shares
do not have any voting rights.

Dividends on ordinary shares

No ordinary dividends were declared during the period. Holders of A ordinary and preterence shares are entitled to receive
dividends per share as declared periodically and are entitled to one vote per share at Sharcholder mectings of the Company.

Share premium
29 January 2022 30 January 2021

£000 £'000
Premium on allotment of A Ordinary shares 104,581 100,581
Premium on allotment of D1 Ordinary shares 22 22
Premium on allotment of D2 Ordinary shares 12 12
Premium on allotment of D3 Ordinary shares 14 14
Premium on allotment of Preference shares 5,976 -
Total parent company share premium 106,605 100.629
Total parent company share capital and share premium 107,561 101.561



LIBERTY ZETA LIMITED

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 52 week period ended 29 January 2022

9.  ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

In the opinion of the Directors there is no ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party.

1 GUARANTELS

The Company is a guarantor of the Group’s Senior Facilities.



